SUBMITTAL TO THE RIVERSIDE COMMUNlTY ,
HOUSING CORP. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

'COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA R

(ID#8413)

. - MEETING DATE:
= L ‘ o Tuesday, December 4, 2018
FROM : RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY HOUSING CORP.: | | E

~ SUBJECT: RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY HOUSING CORP.: Receive and File Fiscal Year 2017-
- 2018 Annual Report; Approval of Recommendations and Budget Adjustment; AII’
Districts; Project is CEQA Exempt : - e
RECOMMENDED MOTION: That the Board of Directors:

1 Find that the pro;ect is exempt from the California Environmental Quahty Act (CEQA)
pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3); 8

2. Receive and file Riverside Community Housing Corp’s Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Annual
Report including all exhibits (Report); and

T U R S

3. Approve the recommendatnons set forth in the Report and direct the Chief Fmancial Ofﬂcer"‘
to make the budget ad;ustments contained in Exhibit B to the Report

117272018

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

On motion of Director Jeffnes seconded by Director Tavaglione and duly carried by
unanimous vote, IT WAS ORDERED that the above matter i is approved as rec:ommended

- Ayes ' Jeffries, Tavaghone Washington, Perez and Ashley
Nays: None Kecia Harper—lhem
San “Absent: None |
. Date: December 4, 2018

xc:  RCHC,EO
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S SUBMITTAL TO THE RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY
sl ~ HOUSING CORP. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
~ COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA _

cosr § ,, o] ‘ ~$0 0§ 0
YNETCOUNTYCOST "$ 0| § o] %0 T %0

“Budget Adjustment:  No
For Fiscal Year:  2017/18

'souncr:' OF FUNDS: N/A

' C.E.O. RECOMMENDATION: Approve

BACKGROUND:
- Summary

Annual Remrt ' : ‘ B
Pursuant to the Bytaws of the Riverside Community Housing Corp. (RCHC), which were: adopted

* by the RCHC Board of Directors (Board) on September 9, 2014, the Board shall cause an Annual
“Report to be sent to each Director within 120 days after the end of the corporation’s fiscal year. -
- The purpose of such report is to summarize the corporation’s actrvmes dunng the prevrom frscal
year.

In satisfaction of this requirement of the Bylaws, a copy of RCHC's Fiscal Year 2017-18 Annual
‘Report, including all exhibits (Annual Report) is attached hereto for the Board’ 's consideration and -
~approval. The Annual Report includes a financial summary of the corporation’ s activities for fiscal

year 2017-18; a budget adjustment request to reflect an increase to the 2017-18 budget inthe
~ amount of $77,121 derived from Emergency Solutions Grant funds, Communlty Bevelovment .
Block Grant funds, and Neighborhood Stabilization Program funds; a review of RCHC'’s Risk
. Management Plan; and a review of RCHC'’s Procurement Polrcy : : :
[
Pursuant to the California Envnronmental Quality Act (CEQA) the Annual Report was revrewed
“and determined to be categorically exempt from CEQA under State CEQA Guidelines Section
- 15061(b) (3), General Rule or “Common Sense” exemption. It can be seen with certawﬁrty that
 there is no possibility that the approval of the Annual Report may have a significant effect on the
~ environment as they have only financial and administrative effects, and will not lead to any direct
. or reasonably indirect physical environmental impacts. - A Notice of Exemption will be filed by
RCHC staff with the County Clerk foltowrng the approval of the Annual Report.

Staff recommends that the Board approve RCHC's Fiscal Year 2017 18 Annual Report attached :
hereto, approve the recommendations set forth thereln and the budget adjustmant contained m
Exhibit B. : '
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* SUBMITTAL TO THE RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY
~ HOUSING CORP. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

b)

LA

) !mgacg on 5esgggg§ nd Businesses

ERS ; Approving this item will have a positive impact on residents of the County of Riverside by g

o .. supporting the ongoing activities of a non-profit public benefit corporation desrgned to create and
T preserve affordable I'(ousmg opportumtles within the County of Riverside.

y

dgltigngl Fiscal Iniormgtlg ,
The increase of $77,121 from the original budget of $4,468, 539 was due to RCHCs receipt of

new grant funds derived from the County of Riverside’s Emergency Solutions Grant and :
~ Community Development Block Grant and a grant derived from Ne:ghborhood Stab:!tzatton o
Program funds. The increase is shown in Exhibit B to the Annual Report :

SUPPLEMENTAL: . | | | A 5

No Audstor Controller Ofﬂce budget adjustments are necessary because RCHC ﬁ'\as its own :
internal software that handles all budgets and payments. , | ; e

-

ATTACHMENTS:

e Fiscal Year 2017-18 Annual Report, including all exhibits

ratll) ¥ i

os, Direftor County. Counsel 1171472098
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Rive’erside Community
Housing Corp. -
Established 1898
|Annual Report
Fiscal Year 2017-18

Pursuant to the Bylaws of the Riverside Community Housing Corp. (RCHC), which were adopted
- by the RCHC Board of Directors (Board) on September 9, 2014, the Board shall cause an Annual
Report to be sent to each Director within 120 days after the end of the corporation’s fiscal year.
The purpose of such report is to summarize the corporation’s activities during the previous fiscal
year.

Included in this Annual Report is an impact summary of the corporation’s operations for fiscal year
2017-18; a financial summary of the corporation’s activities for fiscal year 2017-18; a budget
adjustment for fiscal year 2017-18; an Annual Statement of Transaction or indemnification; if
applicable; an annual review of RCHC's Risk Management Plan; and a review of RCHC’
Procurement Pohcy

Impact Summary

Through its programs  and serwces RCHC executes its charitable purpose of creatmg and -
preserving affordable housing opportunities for low -and moderate income individuals - and
households in Riverside County. Following is a summary of the impact of RCHC'’s programs and
services during fiscal year 2017-18; :

» Of the RAD properties recently acquired, RCHC rehabilitated an additional 92 units to
ensure a safe, decent, and sustainable living space. Seventy-two units received new.
energy efficient HYAC units with energy efficient ductwork and 20 units were completely
renovated, including installation of new ceramic tile flooring, new kitchen cabinets; and
energy efficient appliances.

» Using NSP funds, RCHC continued to renovate the NSP properties to ensure a safe,
decent; and sustainable living space. Renovations included installation  of new energy
efficient HVAC units, lighting and attic insulation. In addition, some units were completely
renovated and received new flooring, new kitchen cabinets, and energy efficient
appliances.

> Sixty-six households were assisted as part of the new CDBG Project HOME Program.
Twenty-six of the 66 households exited homelessness and relocated into permanent
housing. This program addresses the housing needs of persons at-risk of or experiencing
homelessness in the County and who need short-term supports to successfully relocate‘
into - permanent housing. The program provides participants with ongoing case
management and financial assistance towards emergency housing, rental application

fees, security and utility deposits, along with rental and utility assistance for up to three :
months. :

N

£6) A 501(c)(3) Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation R
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Riverside Community
Housing Corp.

Established 1952

> Fourteen households were assisted into permanent housing as part of the ESG Housing -
First Program. This program provides rapid rehousing to literally homeless households
throughout Riverside County who are referred through the County of Riverside’s
Coordinated Entry System. Services include financial assistance towards rental -
application and credit check fees, move-in costs, security and utility deposits, and rental
and utility assistance. Participants are algo linked to a case manager who works with them
to develop ‘an Individual Service Plan and meets with them regularly to reach self-
sufficiency goals. The program plans to serve an additional 12 households during ﬁscal :
year 2018-19.- k

' Financial Summary
Attached hereto as Exhibit A is the Independent Auditor’s Report for Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
201 8, which includes the following information:

1. The assets and liabilities at of the end of fiscal year 2017-18;

2. Principal changes in assets and liabdlities during fiscal year 2017-18;
3. Revenue or receipts during fiscal year 2017-18;

4. Expenses or disbursements during fiscal year 2017-18; and

5. - A report made by independent accountants related to the above referenced financial
statement. ‘

Budget Adjustment
A budget adjustment summarizing the differences between actual and budgeted revenues and
expenditures for fiscal year 2017-18 is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

Annual Statement of Transaction or Indemnification

Pursuant to California Corporations Code §§6321 and 6322, unless otherwise indicated in the
Bylaws, an Annual Statement of Transaction or Indemnification shall be furnished to the' RCHC
Board of Directors disclosing any covered transaction during the previous fiscal year involving
more than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), or which was one of a number of covered transactions -
in which the same interested person had a direct or indirect material financial interest, and which
transactions in the aggregate involved more than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000).

" RCHC staff and Officers are not aware of any covered transactions during fiscal year 2017-18.

Therefore, no Statement of Transaction or Indemnification is required for fiscal year 2017-18.

'Risk Management

As part of RCHC'’s Risk Management Plan, the corporation’s insurance policies are assessed
annually to ensure that they still meet the needs of the corporation. RCHC’s insurance_policy was

. $6) A 801(c)(3) Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation CR

rimgton .
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Established 1992

procured through the Rlversrde County Office of Risk Management Specifically, the insurer is the

California State Association of Counties. The insurance declaration page for coverage perlod July

1, 2017 to July 1, 2018 is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

" The office of Risk Management has reviewed the policy and advised that it is satisfactory to meet
the needs of the corporation and satisfies the requirements of California Corporation’s Code

' '§§5047 5, 5238 and 5239. No changes to RCHC's insurance coverage are recommended at this

time.

]

Procurement Policy ‘
Each odd numbered report presentation year, the Annual Report includes a review of RCHC's

Procurement Policy to ensure it continues to meet the needs of the corporation. and reﬂects,

ccurrent requirements. The Policy is attached hereto as Exhibit D.

RCHC staff and Officers have reviewed RCHC's Procurement Policy. No changes are
recommended at this time

£ A 501(0)(3) Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation R
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- - s Exhibit A
o S _ : ~To Fiscal Year 2017-18 Annual Report

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(Behind this page)
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~ Smith Marion & Company, LLP - Certified Public Accountants
Redhnds Office - 1940 Orange Tree Lane, Suite 100 - Redlands, CA 92374 «(909) 307-2323

The Governing Body

Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Riverside, CA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of busmess-type activities of the Riverside Community
Housing Corp. as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which.
collectively comprise the Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. .

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that arefree
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibnllty Coa

-Our responsibility is.to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audtt in.
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. :

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments; the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. :

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prowde a basis for our audit
_opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the business-type activities of the Riverside Community Housing Corp., as of June 30, 2018, and the
respective change in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

www.SMCoCPA.com
Brentwood, TN * » = Lake Arrowhead, CA RedlandsCA




Rwemde Community Housing Corp
Independent Auditors’ Report
June 30, 2018

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion ar%d
analysis, as described in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in-an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to-the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and -
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinibn or
-provide any-assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufﬁment evidenceto -
express an opinion or provide any assurance :

Other Information v

- Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s financial statements. The supplementary information, as described inthe table - -
of contents, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Costs Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain other procedures, including

“.comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information
are fairly stated in all material respects.in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

‘Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 2, 2018, on our
consideration of the Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
_ ~-compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
: ; purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Riverside Community
Housing Corp.’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
- performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Riverside Community Housmg Carp s

internal control over financial reportmg and compliance.

- ol ik

October 2, 2018




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2018

The purpose of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to provide a narrative overview, financial_‘
- highlights and analyses of the audited annual financial statements of the Riverside Community Housing Corp. {RCHC,

we, us, our).- This MD&A section is required by the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standarids Board (GASB) ,
‘Statement 34, and is presented in conjunction with the accompanying Basic Financial Statements.

The financnal statements are reported based on a twelve-month fiscal year, which starts on July 1 of one calendar year
and ends on June 30 of the next calendar year; the fiscal year is named by the calendar year in which the fiscal year
*“ends. Therefore, the basic annual financial statements presented in this report are for Fiscal Year 2018, which started
July 1, 2017 and ended june 30, 2018.

THE PURPOSE OF THE RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY HOUSING COPORATION

On January 7, 1992, the Housing Authority of the County of Riverside’s (Authority) Board of Commissioners adopted:.
Resolution Number 92-002 that autherized the creation of the-RCHC. The RCHC was established as-an‘affiliate of the -
Authority for the purpose of financing, acquiring, developing, rehabilitating, owning, managing and selling affordable
‘housing in Riverside County for persons of extremely low, low and moderate income, and to access certain state and -
federal programs available to non-profit corporations. RCHC was inactive subsequent to its incorporation’in 1992.0On
July'1, 2014 the Authority’s Board of Commissioners adepted Resolution Number 2014-007, which authorized the
activation of RCHC and commencement of its corporate operations. Hence, Authority’s Board of Commissioners acts as
RCHC’s Board of Directors, Authority employees function as corporate staff and ofﬁcers, and RCHC conducts its
business from the Authorlty s main office.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

: 'RCHC ended the fiscal year of operations with assets of $11,561,509; deferred outflows of resources of $_1,190,573; B
liabilities of $7,971,492; deferred inflows of resources of $332,607; and total net position of $4,447,983. ‘

The endmg net position of $4,447,983 represents a decrease of $1,114,614 from the prior fiscal year, which resulted
from operating revenues of $4,420,224; investment income of $127; gain on dlsposmon of assets of $4,302 and :
operating expenses of $5,539,267.

These financial highlights are detailed further in the Presentation of Condensed Financial Information With Analysis of
Overalt Financial Position.

OVERVIEW. OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RCHC is a blended compohent unit of the Authority, conducts its financial operations in a business-type approach, and
is defined as a governmental enterprise fund by GASB. Therefore, RCHC is required to present its fi nanciat statements
in the format of enterprise fund financial statements.




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Managenment’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2018

The enterprise fund financial statements consist of three documents:

1) \ Statement of Net Position ;
2) . Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
3} Statement of Cash Flows

~ The Statement of Net Position presents information.on all of RCHC's assets, deferred inflows of resources, liabilities,
.and deferred outflows of resources with the difference being reported as net position. The Statement of Net Posmon
replaces the Statement of Net Assets.

The Statemznt of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position presents information showing how RCHC's net
position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported in the proprietary (enterprise) fund
financial statements based on full accrual of revenues and expenses, regardless of the timing of cash flows. As aresult,
the accrual of revenues and expenses as reported in this statement would affect cash flow in future fiscal periods.
Revenues, whether received or not, are properly recorded in the fiscal period in which they are earned; expenses, |
whether paid out or not, are properly recorded in the fiscal period in which the related debt obligation is incurred.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents information on cash flows from operating activities, capital and related financing
activities, and investing activities. The accrual of revenues and expenses from prior fiscal years would affect the cash
flow in the current fiscal period. The proprietary (enterprise) fund financial statements are on pages 3-6 of this report.

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided by this agency in the proprietary (enterprise) fund fmanmal statements The notes to the financial statements :
are on pages 8-19 of this report.




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2018 -

PRESENTATION OF CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION WITH ANALYSIS OF OVERALL FINANCIAL POSITION

Condensed Statement of Net Position -

Financial statements, presented as follows, are shown'in a condensed format to compare amounts from the current
fiscal year (2018) to amounts from.the prior fiscal year (2017). These condensed financial statements are accompamed
by charts to illustrate selected aspects of financial lnformatlon, along with brief narrative ana|yses

Change
2018 2017 Dollar Percentage
R B [
Current Assets $ 1,725,010 - $ 1,603,222 S 121,788 »8%
Capital Assets, net 9,717,164 6,390,555 3,326,609 52%
Other Non-Current Assets 119,335 119,335 - 0%
Deferred Outflows: 1,190,573 845,195 345,378 41%
Total Assets & :

Deferred Outflows $-12,752,082 S 8,958,307 S 3,793,775. . 42.35%

Current Liabilities $ 1,431,177 S 861,812 569,365 ) - 66%
Non-Current Liabilities ' 6,540,315 2,262,438 4,277,877 -. 189%
Deferred Inflows 332,607 271,460 61,147 23%
Net Position 4,447,983 5,562,597 (1,114,614) -20%

Total Liabilities, Deferred
Inflows, & Net Position $ 12,752,082 $ 8,958307 $ 3,793,775 4%.35%

As previously illustrated by the Statement of Net Position, RCHC ended the fiscal year of operations with assets of
$11,561,509; deferred outflows of resources of $1,190,573; liabilities of $7,971,492; deferred inflows of resources of
$332,607; and total net position of $4,447,983. This net position represents 100% of unrestricted assets that are
earmarked to meet RCHC's mission of providing affordable housing projects and supportive services to low-income
families residing in Riverside County.




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Financial statements, presented as follows; are shown in a condensed format to compare amounts from the current
fiscal year (2018) to amounts from the prior fiscal year (2017). These condensed financial statements are accompanied-
by charts to illustrate selected aspects of financial information, along with brief narrative analyses.

Change :
2018 2017 . Dollar Percentage
Operating Revenues ’
Tenant rental :
revenue (net of collection losses) $ 4,104,860 $ 1,022,313 $ 3,082,547 » 302%
"~ Operating grants and subsidies 246,915 2,142,154 (1,895,239) ~ o (88%)
Fee revenue - - ;- 0%
Other income : , 68,449 670,781 (602,332) (90%)
‘Total Operating Revenues 4,420,224 3,835,248 584,976 15%
-Operating Expenses : : :
-Administrative : 1,714,983 1,301,464 : 413,519 32%
Tenant services - - - 0%
Utilities : A 553,058 396,886 156,172 39%
Maintenance . 1,993,995 1,684,640 309,355 T 18%
Protective services - S S - 0%
Insurance premiums ' 256,430 189,897 66,533 35%
Other general expenses 156,948 178,542 (21,594) (12%)
Housing assistance payments 147,317 307,674 {160,357) (52%)
- Depreciation o 716,536 875,176 (158,640) {18%)
Total Operatmg Expenses 5,539,267 4,934,279 - 604,988 - 12%
Other Non-Operating ; :
Investment income , : 127 722 . {595) (82%)
Gain {loss) on-disposition of assets 4,302 - 4,302 NA
Interest expense - - S : 0%
Extraordinary items gain (net of losses) - - - 0%
Total Other Non-Operating 4,429 722 3,707 -513%
Capital Contributions , - 6,576,885 . (6,576,885) . {100%)
Change in Net Position : $ (1,114614) $ 5,478,576 S (6,593,190) (120%)

OPERATING REVENUES
FISCALYEAR ENDED SUNE 30, 2018

OPERATING EXPENSES 8Y CATEGORY
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Deaprecistion, 12%




\ Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2018 /

As shown b? the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position_, the RCHC's net position
decreased by $6,593,190 from the prior fiscal year, due to the lack of Capital Contributions for Rental Assistance
Demonstration (RAD) properties transferred in Fiscal Year 2017.

ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT BUDGET VARIANCES

The Authority’s fiscal department works closely with RCHC staff to monitor the annual operating budget throughout
the fiscal year in order to avoid over expenditure of available funds. Monthly and quarterly financial documents are
prepared to assist in this process.

Comparison of Original Budget and Final Budget ' .
Overall, the original operating budget of $4,468,539 increased by $77,121 from the Original Budget to the Final Budget,
as illustrated below.

Budget Change
. Final Original Dollar Percentage
Operating Revenues
Tenant rental $ 4,094,482 S 4,090,327 _ $ 4,155 0%
revenue (net of collection losses) ‘ )

Operating grants and subsidies 306,047 279,492 ) 26,555 10%
Other income 145,131 98,720 46,411 47%

Total Operating Revenues 4,545,660 4,468,539 ‘ 77,121 2%
Operating Expenses: ,
Administrative $ 1,329,089 $ 1,327,419 1,640 0%
Utilities 702,823 696,387 6,436 1%
Maintenance © 1,444,488 1,425,513 18,975 1%
Insruance premiums 261,729 253,625 . 8,104 3%
Other general expenses 530,363 514,952 15,411 3%
Housing assistance payments 1 277,188 250,643 26,555 11%
Depreciation - - )

Total Operating Expenses 4,545,660 4,468,539 77,121 2%
Change in Net Pesition $ - S - S -

Explanation for Variance:

The increase of $77,121 from the original budget of $4,468,539 was due to additional funds for the Emergency
Solutions Grant and Community Development Block Grant. In addition, the budgeted revenues and expenses for the
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) Properties were inadvertently excluded from the Original budget.




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2018
Comparison of Actual Operating Results and Final Budget
Budget 7 Variance
Actual Final Dollar Percentage
Operating Revenues .
Tenant rental 4,104,860 S 4,094,482 S 10,378 0%
revenue (net of collection losses)
Operating grants and subsidies 246,915 306,047 (59,132) -19%
Other income 68,449 145,131 (76,682) -53%
Total Operating Revenues . - 4,420,224 4,545,660 (125,436) -3%
Operating Expenses
Admiristrative 1,714,983 S 1,329,059 $ 385,924 ’ 29%
Utilities o 553,058 702,823 . (149,765) -21%
Maintenance 1,993,995 1,444,488 549,507 : 38%
Insruance premiums 256,430 261,729 (5,299) 2%
Other general expenses 156,948 530,363 (373,415) -70%
Housing assistance payments 147,317 277,198 (129,881) -47%
Depreciation 716,536 - 716,536 ' X
' Total Operating Expenses 5,539,267 4,545,660 993,607 ’ 22%
Operating Revenues: ;
There were no significant changes between the Final budget and Actuals. N

Operating Expenses:

Administrative Expenses included budget for management fees, which were excluded from Actuals as part of
the elimination entries in reporting.

Administrative Expenses Actuals included pension expenses and compensated absences that were not
included in the Final budget.

8

Maintenance Expenseswere higher than budgeted due to unforeseen rehabilitation of properties funded by
the RAD Program.

Other General Expenses comprised of operating and capital reserves were excluded from Actuals but included
in the Final budget.

Other General Expenses included a budget for legal, which were lower than anticipated.

Housing assistance payments were lower than budgeted because new grant funds were not approved until
the third quarter; and therefore, not fully expended by the end of the Fiscal Year.

Depreciation expense was included in the Actuals, but excluded from the Final budget.
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2018

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

Overall, at June 30, 2018, RCHC's investment in capital assets, consisting of land, buildings, furniture, and equipment
was reported at its net value of $9,717,164, which were derived from the total value of capital assets of $40,608,814,
less accumulated depreciation of $30,891,650. Changes in capital assets included completion of capital projects for the
RAD Program and acquisition of 11 NSP Properties. ' »

, Change
2018 2017 Dollar Percentage

Land $ 3,197517 $§ 3,197517 § - 0%
Construction in Progress - 619,351 (619,351) (100%)
Buildings and Improvements 36,987,641 32,325,145 4,662,496 14%
Furniture and Equipment 423,656 457,836 {34,180) ; {7%)
; Total Capital Assets 40,608,814 36,599,849 4,008,965 11%
Accumulated Depreciation ; (30,891,650} (30,209,294) (682,356) 2%
Capital Assets; net S 9,717,164 $ 6,390,555 $ 3,326,609 52%

Long-Term Debt,
Atthe end of the current fiscal year, RCHC's had debt outstanding of $3,704,000. More detailed information pertaining
to long-term debt is presented in‘the notes to the financial statements (Page 18, Note 6).

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS: ECONOMIC FACTORS

Under current law, most Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher participants pay 30 percent of their adjusted income
toward rent, and HUD pays the remainder up to the current payment standard for their approved subsidy size.
According to a proposed plan, HUD will require participants to pay 35% of their monthly adjusted income toward rent.
If passed, nationally 4.7 million families would be impacted and locally 3,035 (35%) households in Riverside County. The
average increase per household in Riverside County would be $353/month.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Riverside Community Housing Corp. Questions

concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to
the Chief Financial Officer’s office at 5555 Arlington Avenue, Riverside, CA 92504.
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018
ASSETS
Current Asset .
Cash and cash equivalents S 788,609
Receivables (net of allowance) 936,401
Investments -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets -
Inventory (net of allowance) -
Assets held for sale -
Total Current Assets ‘ 1,725,010
Non-Current Assets
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 9,717,164
Receivables {net of current) 119,335
Other noncurrent assets ) -
Total Non-Current Assets 9,836,499
TOTAL ASSETS 11,561,509
TOTAL DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES S 1,190,573
See notes to financial statements 3




Riverside Community Housing Corp.

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018
UABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable S 875,704
Accrued expenses ' 158,231
Deposits held in trust . 328,672
Unearned revenue . 68,570
Debt ‘ -
Other current liabilities R -
" Total Current Liabilities 1,431,177
Non-Current Liabilities
Debt {net of current) ; 3,704,000
Accrued expenses (net of current) 294,075
Other non-current liabilities -
Net pension liability and other post
employment benefits 2,542,240
Total Non-Current Liabilities 6,540,315
' TOTAL LUABILITIES 7,871,492
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 332,607
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 6,013,164
Restricted , .-
Unrestricted - {1,565,181)
TOTAL NET POSITION S 4,447,983
See notes to financial statements 4




e RERTE T

Riverside Community Housing Gorp.

‘Statement of Revenues; Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2018
Operating Revenues
Tenant rental revenue (net of collection losses) : - 4,104,860
Operating grants and subsidies 246,915
Fee revenue -
Other income 68,449
Total Operating Revenues 4,420,224
Operating Expenses
Administrative 1,714,983
Tenant services ' -
Utilities 553,058 -
Maintenance 1,993,995
Protective services -
Insurance premiums 256,430
- -Other general expenses 156,948
Housing assistance payments 147,317
Depreciation 716,536
Total Operating Expenses 5,539,267
Operating Income (Loss) (1,119,043)
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 127
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets 4,302
Interest expense -
‘Extraordinary items gain (net of losses) -
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) , 4,429
Capital contributions o
Change in Net Position (1,114,614)
Beginning Net Position 5,562,597
Prior-period adjustment(s) i . -
Ending Net Position ] 4,447,983

See notesto ﬁnancial statements




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: L
Cash receipts fromtenants S 4,071,927
Cash receipts from grants ‘ ) 703,089

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services : (3,665,018)

Cash payments for wages and benefits {747,602)
Other cash payments and receipts {154,348)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 208,048

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,038,843)
Disposition of capital assets -
Capital contributions - -

Debt additions 3,704,000
Debt reductions ' -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing
Activities : (334,843)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Funds loaned --
Investmentincome : } 127
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 127
Net Increase (decrease) in Cash
' . and Cash Equivalents (126,668)
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents 915,277
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents S 788,609

See notes to financial statements 6




Riverside Community Housing Corp.

Statement of Cash Flows

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by

Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation
Pension related expense

Changes in aperating assets and liabilities
Receivables
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Inventory
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits held in trust
Unearned revenue
Other liabilities
Total adjustments

See notes to financial statements

Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Operating Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2018

8 (1,119,043}

716,536
318,833

228,917
(477.373)

685,208
(116,557)

10,983
(39,456)

1,327,091

S 208,048




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNI FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICHES
Introduction

The financial statements of Riverside Community Housing Corp. (RCHC, Corporation, we, us, our) have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the standard-setting body for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
{Statements and interpretations). The Corporation has previously implemented GASB Statement 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. Certain significant changes
in the statements are as follows: The financial statements will include a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
section providing an analysis of the Corporation’s overall financial position and results of operations.

Riverside Community Housing Corp. is a non-profit corporation and is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Housing
. -Authority of the County of Riverside (Authority) which is a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type
activities and, therefore, the Corporation presents the financial statements required for proprietary (enterprise funds),
in accordance with GASB Statement 34, paragraph 138 and GASB 63. For these governments, basic financial statements
and required supplementary information consist of:

¢ Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

¢  Enterprise fund financial statements consisting of:
o . Statement of Net Position
o Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position
o Statement of Cash Flows

* - Notes to Financial Statements ,

e Required supplemental information other than MD&A

A Reporting Entity
~ The Corporation operates as a California non-profit public benefit corporation whose purpose is to engage in
financing, acquiring, developing, rehabilitating, owning, managing, and selling affordable housing for
extremely low, low and moderate-income persons within the County of Riverside. -Further Corporation
augments low and moderate-income resident services and housing programs sponsored by the Housing
Authority of the County of Riverside and/or the County of Riverside Economic Development Agency.

B. Basic Financial Statements/Funds

All activities of Riverside Community Housing Corp. are reported in proprietary fund types. The focus of
proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net position, financial
position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar to
businesses in the private sector. Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which
afeeis charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is secured
by the Authority’s capital assets and by a pledge of the net revenues, {b) has third party requirernents that the
cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes fees
and charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs.




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2018

In the Statement of Net Position, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

a) - Net Investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by the outstanding balance of any notes or other borrowmgs attributable to. those capital
assets.

b) Restricted net position — Consists of assets wnth constraints placed on the use either by external
groups, such as grantors or laws and regulations of other governments, or law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

¢} Unrestricted net position — All other assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net
investment in capital assets”.

When both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available for use, generally it is the Corporation’s
policy to use restricted resources first.

Accrual Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

Proprietary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accountmg Revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Bui Data

Enterprise fund service delivery levels are determined by the extent of consumer demand. Because enterprise
fund revenues and expenses fluctuate with changing service delivery levels, generally accepted accounting
principles do not require the financial statements to include budgetary comparisons and, accordingly, these
comparisons have not been included.

Budgets are prepared for regulatory purposes in accordance with Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s
contract with HUD. The Corporation prepares annual budgets for each program. Prior to the beginning of each
budget year, the Authority's annual budget is approved by its governing body. Budgetary amendments require
approval by the governing body. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each year. Budgets for
Capital Fund Programs are approved in the Authority's 5-year and annual plans.

Financial Statement Accouhts & Other Accounting Matters

Revenues. All Riverside Community Housing Corp. revenues are accrued. These revenues consist of user
charges for rents, utilities, repairs and other miscellaneous charges. Monies received from customers for
security deposits are recorded as a liability upon receipt. Subsidies and grants, which finance current
operations, are reported as operating revenues. Subsidies and grants, which finance capital operations,
gain/loss on sale of fixed assets, and interest income/expense, are reported as non-operating revenues.
Revenues for government-mandated and voluntary exchange transactions, are recorded when all applicable
eligibility requirements, including time requirements, are met. Resources received before all eligibility
requirements are met are reported as deferred inflows of resources or unearned revenues. .

In accordance with GASB standards, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, dwelling income and other rental
related fees of $4,128,559 has been netted with bad debt expense of $23,699.

Expenditures. Expenditures are recognized when the liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in the
period when inventory items are purchased due to triviality of inventory balances.




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Cash and Equivalents, and Investments.

a. Cash and Equivalents. The Corporation defines cash to include certificates of deposit,
money market funds, savings accounts, demand deposits, and other short-term securities
with original maturities of three months or less; consequently, the cost, carrying value, and
market value are equivalent. '

b. Investments. Investments, if any, would be carried at fair market value, except for U.S.
Treasury Bills, which would be canceled at amortized cost. - '

All deposits of the Corporation are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured by HUD
regulations. The annual contribution contract authorizes the Corporation to invest in the following types of
securities:

1. Obligations of the Federal Government which are backed by the full faith and credit of the
Federal Government. '

2. Obligations of any agency or instrumentality of the Federal Government if the payment of
interest and principal on such obligations is fully guaranteed by the Federal Government.

3. Obligations of the Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, the Federal Home Loan Banks, the

Federal National Mortgage Association, the Bank for Cooperatives, and the Federal Land
Banks which mature no later than 18 months after the date of purchase.

During the fiscal year and at year-end, all cash was held in the form of interest bearing accounts. The deposits
and the above described investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less are considered cash and cash
equivalents for the Statement of Cash Flows.

Restricted Cash. Restricted cash consists of cash and investments that are held in trust, reserves and escrows, as
well as other cash and investments that are restricted for specific purposes.

Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable consists of all amounts earned at year end and not yet received.
Allowances for uncollectible accounts are based upon historical trends and periodic aging of accounts receivable.

Capital Assets. Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date
received. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset
are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation of exhaustible capital assets is charged as an expense against operations utilizing the straight-line
method. Accumulated depreciation is reported on the Statement of Fund Net Position. The estimated useful
lives for each major class of depreciable fixed assets are as follows: :

Asset Class Estimated Lives
Buildings and Improvements 10-25
Equipment 5-15
Vehicles 10
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Compensated Absences. Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, i.e., vacation
and other approved leaves, with the exception of those employees that are terminated on grounds of gross

misconduct. The Corporation accrues the liability for those absences for which the employee has earned the

rights to the benefits. Accrued amounts are based on the current salary rates. Permanent Corporation

employees earn from 10 to 20 vacation days a year, depending upon their length of employment, and 13 sick

days a year. Employees can carry forward up to the equivalent number of vacation days earned in the.
immediately preceding thirty-six month period and an unlimited number of unused sick leave days.

Upon termination or retirement, permanent employees are entitled to receive compensation at their current
base salary for all unused vacation leave. If an employee retires, the employee is entitled to a portion of
accumulated sick leave hours. In no event, however, shall the total payment exceed a sum equal to 960 hours.
It is the policy of the Corporation to reflect the employee vacation leave benefits liability in the financial
statements, and an estimated portion of the sick leave liability.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Tenant Security Deposits. Security deposits consist of amounts held in trust with Riverside Commumty Housing
Corp. in order for tenants to secure apartment leases.

Unearned Revenue. Unearned revenues, if any, consist of rental payments made by tenants in advance of their

- due date, and rental supplements to be paid to owners of private dwellings during the first month of the next
fi scal year as well as grant advances that are only subject to performance milestones in order to recognize

revenues. :

Deferred inflows/Outflows of Resources. The Corporation is allocated a percentage of the pension and related
items of the Authority’s pension obligations. For a more detailed discussion on the pension as well as the related
deferred outflow/inflows of resources see the Authority’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018.

In accordance with GASB 63, in addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred
Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not
be recognized as an expense-or expenditure until then. The Corporation had deferred outflows of resources
consisting of pension activity. The defeasance balance is systematically amortized over the remaining life of the
old debt. The amortization is recognized as a component of interest expense. The balance as of June 30, 2018
was $1,190,573.

Also, in addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then.
The Corporation deferred inflows of resources consist of pension activity. The balance as of June 30, 2018 was
$332,607.

Pensions. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the-County Employees Pension Plans (CEPP) and additions to/deductions from CEPP’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the California Public Employee’s Retirement System
(CalPERS) Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

11




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Depreciation. Depreciation expense of $716,536 has been recognized during the year ended June 30, 2018.

" Income Taxes. The Corporation is exempt from federal income tax under internal Revenue Code Section 501
(c)(3) and by California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 23701d. Contributions from donors qualify for
income tax deductions.

The Corporation has evaluated tax positions and the certainty as to whether those positions will be sustained in
the event of an audit by taxing authorities at the federal and state levels. The primary tax positions evaluated
are related to the Corporation’s continued qualification as a tax-exempt organization and whether there is
unrelated business income activities conducted that would be taxable. Management has determined that all
income tax positions are more likely than not (>50%) of being sustained upon potential audit and/or
examination; therefore, no disclosures of uncertain income tax positions are required:

The Corporatlon files informational returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, as well as the State of California. The
statute of limitations for federal and state purposes are generally three and four years, respectively.

Leasing Activities. Riverside Community Housing Corp. is the lessor of dwelling units to eligible residents. The
rents under the leases are determined generally by the residents’ income as adjusted for eligible deductions
regulated by HUD, although the residents may opt for a flat rent. Leases may be cancelled at any time or
renewed annually. The Corporation may cancel the leases only for a cause. Revenues associated with these
leases are recorded in the accompanying financial statements and related schedules within dwelling rent
revenue.

Fair Value Estimate: The GASB defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or

paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly .

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. GASB established a three-level fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy requires entities to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

* Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for
similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities
in markets that are not active; or inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable
market data.. ;

* Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. This includes certain pricing models, discounted
cash flow methodologies and similar techniques that use significant unobservable inputs.

The estimated fair value of the Corporation's financial instruments has been determined by management usmg\'

available market information. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to
develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the fair values are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that
could he realized in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions may have a material
effect on the estimated fair value amounts. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivabies,
payablesand accrued liabilities are a reasonable estimate of their fair value, due to their short-term nature and
method -of computation. All financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at least
annually) have been segregated into the most appropriate level within the fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used to determine the fair value at the measurement date.

Subsequent Events. We evaluated subsequent events through October 2, 2018, the date these financial
statements were issued.

12




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Governance. The following table lists our Board of Directors as of the year ended June 30, 2018:

John F. Tavaglione Supervisor 2018
Chuck Washington Chairperson 2020
Kevin Jeffries Vice-Chairperson 2020
V. Manuel Perez Supervisor 2018
Marion Ashley Supervisor 2018

In addition to the above Directors, the Administrator of the Corporation is Carrie Harmon, who served as the
Deputy Executive Director.

Section Intentionally Left Blank
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018

2.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments as of June 30, 2018 are classified in the accompanying financial

~ statements as follows:

Unrestricted ‘ , ‘ :
Petty cash S -
Checking & money market accounts 459,937

Total Unrestricted 459,937

Restricted

Modernization and development -
Other restricted i

Tenant security deposits ; 328,672
Restricted for payment of current liabilities -

Total Restricted 328,672

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $==J=8=8,=6£2= :
Investments
Unrestricted S -
Other restricted : -
Restricted for payment of current liabilities i -
Total Investments S -

Required Note Disclosures :
Acknowledging that deposits and investments of state and local governments are subject to various risks, the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 40 (GASB 40) requires note disclosures about investment

- policies and five deposit and investment risks identified as custodial credit risk, credit risk, concentration of

credit risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.

Investment Policy

in November 5, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Corporation ratified, approved, and adopted the Investment
Policy, effective July 1, 2015. This Investment Policy identifies the specific types of deposits and investments
which are authorized by that Investment Policy, by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
and by the California Government Code (CGC). As a blended component unit of the Housing Authority the
Corporation follows the same investment policy.

The Investment Policy of the Corporation does not name the five specific deposit and investment risks identified
by GASB 40, but this Investment Policy does address these risks in principal by stating that it shall be the policy
of the Corporation to invest funds in a manner which will provide the maximum safety, liquidity and reasonable
investment return while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the Corporation and conforming to all statutes
governing the investment of the Corporation funds.
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Authorized Types of Deposits and Investments
All types of deposits with financial institutions and all types of investments made by the Corporation during

. Fiscal Year 2018 were authorized by its own Investment Policy, by HUD and by the CGC. The type and value of

these deposits with financial institutions and investments as of June 30, 2018 are identified below.

Deposits with Financial Institutions
Insured Demand Deposit Accounts
Bank of America $ 788,609 __100%
Total Insured Deposits S 788,609 100%

Disclosure Required for Risks Related to Deposits with Financial Institutions:

-Custodial Credit Risk

For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover its deposits or will. not be able
to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. RN

The Investment Policy of the Corporation, HUD and the California Government Code do not address legal or
policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that afinancial institution secure
deposits made by state or local government units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a -
depository regulated under state law. The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must
equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure such deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the
secured public deposits.

Disclosure Required for Risks Related to Investments:

State Depository Funds

All Corporation funds-on deposit with the Local Area Investment Fund (LAIF) are subject to the California
Government Code (CGC). All securities purchased by the LAIF are purchased under the authority of CGC Section
16430 and 16480.4. CGC Section 16429.3 states that money placed with the state treasurer for deposit in the
LAIF shall not be subject to transfer, loan or impoundment by any state official or state agency. CGC Section
16429 4 states that the right of a qualified government agency to withdraw its deposited money from the LAIF
upon demand may not be altered, impaired, or denied in any way by any state official or state agency based
upon the State’s failure to adopt a State Budget by July 1 of each new fiscal year.

Trustee Indenture Funds

All Corporation funds in the possession of US Bank, designated bond trustee, are subject to written debt
agreements. US Bank, by written agreement with the Corporation, is required to put all available debt service
funds of the Corporation into their First American Treasury Obligations Fund (Money Market Class Y Shares),
which is invested exclusively in short-term US Treasury obligations and repurchase agreements secured by us
Treasury obligations.

Custodial Credit Risk
For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-
dealer) to transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or colfateral

securities that are in the possession of another party.

All Corporation funds invested in LAIF and in Trustee Indenture Funds are subject to the California Government
Code and to written debt agreements, respectively, and are not subject to any sngmﬂcant degree of custodial
credit risk.
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Credit Risk

For investments, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment.

All Corporation funds invested in LAIF and in Trustee Indenture Funds are subject to the California Government
Code and to written debt agreements, respectively, and are not subject to any significant degree of credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk ,
For investments, concentration of credit risk is the risk associated with the Corporation having 5% or more of
total investments with any one issuer.

Interest Rate Risk
For investments, interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
valte of or cash flow from an investment.

All Corporation funds invested in LAIF and any required cash flows from LAIF are subject to the California
Government Code and are not subject to any significant degree of interest rate risk.

All Corporation funds invested in Trustee Indenture Funds are subject to written debt agreements and are not
subject to any significant degree of interest rate risk.

Foreign Chrrency Risk

‘For investments, foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in the value of foreign currency will advérsely

affect the fair value of an investment.

All Corporation funds invested in LAIF and in Trustee Indenture Funds are subject to the California Government
Code ‘and to written debt agreements, respectively, and are not subject to any significant degree of foreign
currency risk. -

Sé/ction Intentionally Left Blank
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable (net) includes tenant receivables (less allowance for bad debt), interest receivable, and
miscellaneous receivables, as following:

PHA projects $ -
HUD other projects -
Other government 7,033
Miscellaneous 224,936
Tenants 377,975
Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants (207,972)

Allowance for doubtful accounts - other
Notes, loans, and mortgages - current
Fraud Recovery

Allowance for doubtful accounts - fraud
Accrued interest receivable 7
Primary government receivable 534,429

Current Receivables (net of allowance) S = 936,401

CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

2017 Additions Deletions 2018
Non-Depreciable .
Land $ 3,197,517 $ -8 -~ % 3,197,517
Construction in progress 619,351 339,145 (958,496) -
Subtotal 3,816,868 339,145 (958,496) 3,197,517
Depreciable
Buildings & improvements 32,325,145 4,662,496 - 36,987,641
Furniture & equipment . 457,836 - (34,180) 423,656
Subtotal ‘ 32,782,981 4,662,496 {34,180) 37,411,297
Total Capital Assets 36,599,849 5,001,641 (992,676) 40,608,814
Accumulated Depreciation (30,209,294) (716,536) 34,180  (30,891,650) ;

Capital Assets (net) $ 6,390,555 $ 4,285105 S (958,496) $ 9,717,164

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 was $716,536.
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018

LONG-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLE {in thousands)
A summary of activity for notes receivable for the year ended June 30, 2018 is provided below: '

) Current
2017 Additions " Deletions 2018 Portion

Mobile Home Loans $ 119335 $ - S - . $ 119335 $ -
Subtotal 119,335 - - 119,335 -
Total Notes Receivable S 119,335 $ - S - S 119,335 $ -

Notes Receivable Description(s)

Mobile Home Loans ,

The Carporation sells mobile homes to qualified individuals. Instead of cash payment or outside financing the
Corporation places a lean against the property with a 0% non-interest bearing note with a45 year maturity. The
note requires no payments, after the maturity date the loan will be forgiven.

DEBT

A summary of activity for other debt for the year ended June 30, 2018 is provided below:

Current
2017 Additions Deletions 2018 Portion

County of Riverside:
Neighborhood Stabilization (NSP). $ - - $ 3,704,000 $ - S 3,704,000 $ -
Subtotal - 3,704,000 - 3,704,000 :
Total Other Debt  § - $ 3,704,000 $ - $ 3704000 $ -

Notes payable descriptions: .

County of Riverside — Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) :

On September 13, 2016, The Riverside Community Housing Corporation assumed a Rancho Housing Alliance loan
for $3,204,000 funded by the Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP). An additional NSP loan of $500,000 for
rehabilitation costs, unpaid property taxes and operating reserves was acquired increasing the original loan of
$3,204,000 to $3,704,000. The NSP loan shall be the first to occur of July 1, 2067 or fifty-five (55) years from the
issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy.
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
A summary of the acﬁvity for noncurrent liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Due Within

2017 Additions Reductions ~2018 _One Year
Compensated
Absences $ 359,178 $ 247 § (32,675) $ 326,750 $ 32,675
Net Pension Liabﬂity 1,939,176 603,064 - 2,542,240

$ 2,298354 $ 603,311 $ {32,675) $ - 2,868,990 $ 32,675

Section Intentionally Left Blank
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards -

Year Ended June 30, 2018 : ]
CFDA Program ; i
FEDERAL PROGRAM No. Expenditures
D
US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Indirect Fuhding
CDBG - Entitlement Grant Cluster , ‘
Community Development Block Grant [1] 14.218 S - 3,836,643
‘ Total CDBG - Entitlement Grant Cluster 3,836,643
Emergency Solutions Grant Program [2] 14.238 - 114,272
Totdd Indirect Funding 3,950,915 .
Total US Department of HUD : 3,950,915
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 3,950,915
Pass-through from the County of Riverside. (1]
Pass-through from the County of Riverside EDA. [2}

Section Intentionally Left Blank
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Applicable to the Schedule of ExgnditufesofF_e_Qg_rgl Awards

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal awards activity of
Riverside Community Housing Corp. under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2018. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of our operations, it is notintended
to and does not present our financial position, changes in net positions, or cash flows.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The expenditures on the Schedule are reported on an accrual basis of accounting, such expenditures are recogmzed
following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and/or OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State,

Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain types of expendltures are not allowable or are limited for
reimbursement.

121 Indirect Cost Rate
AY

We have elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed in the Uniform Guidance, Section 414.

ral S

Riverside Community Housing Corp. participates in housing programs where funds have been provided by Federal
agencies as loans. Outstanding balances for these loans were as follows:

CFDA
FEDERAL PROGRAM No. 6/30/18 Net Change 6/30/17
US Dept. of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Community Development Block Grant
Pass-through:
County of Riverside 14.218 S - $ 3,704,000 $ 3,704,000
Total Community Development Block Grant - 3,704,000 3,704,000
Total US Department of HUD - 3,704,000 3,704,000
FEDERAL LOAN BALANCE ' S - $ 3,704,000 $ 3,704,000
21




Smith Marion & Company, LLP - Certified Public Accountants
Redlands Office - 1940 Orange Tree Lane, Suite 100 - Redlands, CA 92374 - (909) 30'1-2323

‘The Governing Body

Riversidévanmunity Housing Corp.
Riverside, CA

- 'REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ONAN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
-of the United States, the financial statements of the busi ness-type activities of the Riverside Community Housing Corp.,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements; which collectively
comprise the Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 2, 2018.

’Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Riverside Communlty Housing -
Corp.’s internal control over financial reporting (intermal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the RlverSIde Community Housmg Corp.’s internal
control. .

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of .a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal. course of performing the assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
. prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that s less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to mierit attention by
those charged with governance. :

Our conSIderatlon of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or srgmﬁcant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

www.SMCoCPA.com
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Independent Auditors’ Report
June 30, 2018

Complmnce and Other Matters i .
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Riverside Community Housing Corp s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an.opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
 results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s

internal control or on compliance. This report is anintegral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government

Auditing Standards in considering the Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s internal control and compliance.

Accordmgly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. /
. October 2, 2018
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Smith Marion & Company, LLP - Certified Public Accountants '
Redlands Office - 1940 Orange Tree Lane, Suite 100 - Redlands, CA 92374 - (909) 307-2323

The Governing Body

Riverside Community Housing Corp.
'Riverside, CA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAIOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB UNIFORM GUIDANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements

described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Riverside -
~ Community Housing Corp.’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. Riverside Community Housing
. Corp.’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule

of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s RESPOHSIbIIIty

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulatlons contracts and grants apphcablej
to its major federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s major

federal programs based on our audit of the type of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our

audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller.
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200, Uniform

Admmlstratlve Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those

standards and he Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and

material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about

Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s compliance.

‘Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

‘In our opinion, Riverside Community Housing Corp. complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programsfor
the year ended June 30, 2018.

- www.SMCoCPA.com
Brentwood, TN -+ Lake Arrowhead, CA +  Redlands, CA




Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Independent Auditors’ Report
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Report on internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Riverside Community Housing Corp. is responsible for establishing and maintaining effect!ve internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and perferming our
audit of compliance, we considered Riverside Community Housing Corp.’s internal control over compliarice with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance
for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
- Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express.an opinion on the effectiveness of Riverside Community Housing Corp s
internal control over compliance. '

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent; or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
_over complsance such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
‘requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant.
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal controls over -
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a materiat weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. -

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph k
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over complianice
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 'our testing of internal

control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Uniform Guidance.
-Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

M’AWM&

October 2, 2018
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Schedule-of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2018
SECTION | - Summary of Auditors’ Results
 Financial Statements . ' v
1.- Type of Auditor Report on the financial statements: ’ Unmodified.
2. Internal control over financial reporting:
a. - Material weakness identified yes . _X__ . no
© b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not , : :
considered to be materiat weaknesses? yes - _-X . nonereported
3.  Noncompliance material to financial statements? yes X_ no
Federal Awards ‘
4. Internal control over major programs:
a. . Material weakness identified _.yes _X - no
b. * Significant deficiencies identified that are not ,
considered to be material weaknesses? ___yes _X__ none reported
5. Type of auditors’ report on compliance for major programs: Unmodified.
6. Audit findings noted which are required to be
- reported In accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X no

.

! 14.21,‘8 » | Community Development Block Grant : _ R ' ,

8. TheDolfar Threshold Used to Distinguish Between R
Type A and Type B Programs: , $750,QOO . T i

7. Identification of Major Programs:

9. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee?. X yes no

* SECTION i ~ Financial Statement Findings | , | 4

None noted.

‘SECTION 11l r-,Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There are no_auditor findings to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings-
Year Ended June 30, 2018

No findings noted for year ended June 30, 2017.
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BUDGET ADJUSTMENT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
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RIVERSIDE COMMUNITY HOUSING CORP
Adjustments to Fiscal Year 2017-18 Budget

Orniginal Budget Original Budget
Neighborhood Original Budget Community
Stabilization Program.- | Esmergency Solutions Development Block Totatl of Final Budget
- (NSP) Grant (ESG) Grant (CDBG) Adjustments Total
|REVENUE : :
3110iRental Income . : ) 4,155 4185
3401} Subsidy Revenue : :
3404, Grants Revenue ) ] 26,555 . 26,555
3610}Interest Revenue . R
Loan Revenus _
3690|Miscellaneous - i L 48411 46411
TQTAL REVENUE 77,121 77,121 ]
- |EXPENSE i
: 4110 Payroll, Benefits & Taxes ) ] ) ) 1640 1,640
4110} Temporary/Contract Employees . : :
4130]Legal 72 72
4140/ Training- ]
4150 Travel : . .
4171 |Auditing : 2,000 2,000
4180 Office Rent/Storage ] ) .
4190 Administrative Sundry ) 13,334 13,334
42301 Tenant Services ) ]
4300 Utilites ' : 6,436 6,436
4420 Operations and Maintenance - Materials .
.4430|Qperations and Maintenance - Services . i 18,975 18,975
4431[Trash : ’ ] i .
4480}Protection Services
4510}Insurance 8,104 ) 8,104
4590|Other General Expense ] 5
4610 Extraordinary Maintenance . :
4715/Housing Assistance Payments . ) 26,585 |- 26,555
1173 Debt Setvice Principal Payments . : :
4900/ Debt Servioe interest Payments
7540Asset Purchase ) R
L N TOTAL EXPENSE - - - 77,121 77,121
NET GAIN (LOSS) - - - -
14 - i - x
- Riverside Community Housing Corp.
Explanation for Variance: : %a!
" The increase of $77,121 from the original budget of $4,468,539 was due to additional funds for the :
-Emergency Solutions Grant and Community Development Block Grant, Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Budget’

11/1/2018 10:17
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CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY
GENERAL LIABILITY 1 PROGRAM
MEMORANDUM OF COVERAGE
 DECLARATIONS

ITEM 1: MEMBER: Housing Authority of the County of Riverside -

ITEM 2: MEMORANDUM PERIOD: From July 1, 2018 to July 1, 2019, 12:01 a.m. local time of
the Member as stated herein. Lo ,
am=.u 3 MEMDRANBUMNUMBER:‘ EIA-PE 18 EL-47
ITEM 4: DEDUCTIBLE: $ 10,000
Uitimate net loss as the result of: any one occurrence, offense, wronyulmarmy
combination thereof.
ITEM 5: AUTHORITY’S LIMIT OF LIABILITY - $25,000,000 inclusive . at seﬂmumd
: retention stated in Item 4 '
A Muc&bﬂuyﬂawnhyorRﬂmuredbyB«kleylnsumCompmy S 90,000 -

Ultimate net loss excess of the deductible as the result of: any one occurrence, offense, mngﬁiactor ‘
any combination thereof, including defense costs. :

B PooILmr | 35@0&0 .

w&mmlmexosssofmeseﬁ-msured mtantuonasthemultof' anyoneom offense,
mufw:ctcranycombmahonmereof andmnualaggregateasrespecﬁsmewwm

C. . PﬁmaryLnyar-RdmuredbyGreatAmericanhsuranceCo ‘ $5000900

- Ultimate net loss excess of $ 5,000,000 as the result of any one occurrence, offense, mgf\lator
any-combination thereof, andannualaggregateasrespectsﬁ\ecomphtedawaﬁmm »

- D.. Excess Layer: Reinsured by Markel Global Reinsurance Co/Lioyds Syndicates:  $ 5,000,000

Ultimate net loss excess of $10,000,000 as the result of: any one occurrence offense, mﬂu actor -
any combination thereof, and annual aggregate as respects the completed operations hazard. :

E. Excess Layer: Reinsured by Argonaut Insurance Co/Markel Global Reinsurance Co:  $10,000,000 |

Uitimate net loss excess of $15,000,000 as the result of: any one oewmnoeaﬁerm,wmﬁumar }
any combination thereof, and annual aggregateasrespactsﬂweeompkhdopmﬂmhm :

ITEMG RISK PREMIUM: T v $174,024 (mclusweafaﬁlam&faes),

ITEM 7: FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS ATTACHED AT INCEPTION: EIA GL1 MOC 07/01/2015,
Endorsement No. U-1, U-2, U-3, U-4, U-5, U-6, U-7, U-8, U-9, U-10, U-11, U-12, 1,2

Issue Date: June 30, 2017




ENDORSEMENT NO. 1

CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY
GENERAL LIABILITY 1

ERED PARTY AMENDATORY END MENT

- ,'tt is understood md agreed that the section COVERED PARTY, COVERED PERSONG OR
ENTITIES is amended to include: ,

\

Riverside Comn’\unity,Housing Corporation

Itis further agreed that nothing herein shall act to increase the Authority's limit of liability.
~ This endorsement is part of the Memorandum and takes effect on the effective date of the
- Memorandum uniess another effective date is shown below. All other terms and conditions remain
unchanged ' ,
 Effective Date: o | M;emiorandum No.: EIA-PE 18 EL47
Ism to: Housmg Authority of the County of Riverside
" Issue Date: June 25, 2018 |




Proc_ureméﬂi'l’olicy

Exhibit D
To Fiscal Year 2017-18 Annual Report

PROCUREMENT POLICY

Following is an excerpt from RCHC’s Policies and Procedures Manual addressing RCHC'’s procumment S
policies. These procedures -are annotated with citations to applicable laws, alternatives and. .
recommended practices (parenthetical citations are found at the end of the applicable sentence or -
. paragraph). ' : :

Procurement is the acquiring by ‘contract of supplies and services (including construction) through-
purchase, lease, or other means. Procurement begins at the point when RCHC's needs are established
and includes the description of requirements to satisfy those needs, solicitation and selection of
sources, award of contracts, contract financing, contract performance, contract administration, and
those technical and management functions directly related to the process of fulfilling corporate needs:
“by contract (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). ' :

RCHC shall maintain and adhere to a written code of standards governing the awarding and
administration of contracts (24 CFR §85.36). RCHC shall: provide for a procurement system of quality -
and integrity; provide for the fair and equitable treatment of all persons or firms involved in-purchasing .
by RCHC; ensure that supplies and services (including construction) are procured efficiently, effectively, -
and at the most favorable prices available to RCHC; and assure that RCHC purchasing actions are in .
full compliance with applicable laws and the terms and conditions of any grant, contract, gift.or bequest:
that is: otherwise' consistent with the law (HACR Procurement Policy). Furthermore, RCHC's
procurement-related contracting activities shall be reasonable and necessary and measures shall be
taken to protect against fraud, waste and abuse (OIG Audit Report No.-2011-A0-0001).

In the event an applicable law or regulation is modified or eliminated, or a new law or regulation is

adopted, the revised law or regulation shall, to the extent inconsistent with these policies, automatically
supersede these policies (HACR Procurement Policy). :

_Wheré multiple funding sources are involved (such as in mixed-finance projects) and the procurement:
- standards among those funding sources differ, RCHC shall adhere to the stricter standard.

Responsibitity for Procurement Actions : : s
Other than approval of this Procurement Policy and subject to RCHC’s Delegated Authority Policy,
approval by the RCHC Board of Directors is not required for any procurement action, as permitted under
state and local law. Rather, it is the responsibility of the COO, or designee, to make sure that all -
procurement actions are conducted in accordance with the policies contained herein (HACR
Procurement Policy). : -

While the COO is responsible for ensuring that the RCHC’s procurements comply with this policy, the
COO may delegate all procurement authority as is necessary and appropriate to conduct the business
of the corporation as authorized in the RCHC's Bylaws and/or delegated authority limits. Further, and
in accordance with this delegation of authority, the COO shall, where necessary, establish operational
procedures (such as-a procurement manual or standard operating procedures) to implement this policy
(HACR Procurement Policy). : o

Contracting Officer Signature/Obligation of Funds
Each contract or purchase action (e.g., new contract, modification, interagency agreement, purchase
order, etc.) that obligates RCHC to pay a contractor or vendor must be signed or otherwise authorized

: 1of46
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by an mdmdual to whom RCHC has expressly delegated the authority to make such an obhgatlm (HUD"

‘Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

The rsign_atur?e.of -the Contracting Ofﬁcer on RCHC contracts is a ‘legal cornmitme}n'tv and Tequires: -
-~ continuing performance by RCHC under the terms and conditions of the contract. Performance includes
such duties as monitoring contractor performance and acceptance or rejection of contractors’ requests g

‘for changes in performance, specifications, or price (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2)

v Caut:on if an individual is not an authonzed Contracting Officer, that individual must nat bind RCHC by’» :

making an implied contract such as by making a promise or stating an intent to purchase, either orally

or in writing. Under the laws of agency and apparent authority, RCHC may be liable for, or bound by, -
the acts of an RCHC employee or volunteer, if such person (who.is not a Contracting Officer) appears
to an offeror to have been given authority by RCHC. Therefore, all actions that could be misinterpreted -

- as committing RCHC to purchase should be clarified with a statement such as, “this request for price
‘quotation is not an offer to buy and should not be assumed as such” (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2)

Unauthorized Agreements

No employee shall enter into any agreement, written or unwritten, wuthout prior approval from the Board :
of Directors, or designee, that involves any direct payment or other form of compensation as a result of
“any program administered by RCHC, either directly or indirectly, through agreements with gther partles_ ,

- (HACR 2014 Administrative Plan).

-Actions to Promote Efficiency

RCHC shall review proposed procurements to avoid purchase of unnecessary or- duphcatzve ltems
Consideration shall be given to consolidating or breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical
_purchase. Where appropriate, an analysis will be made of lease versus purchase altematives, and any v

: other appropriate analysis to determine the most economical approach (24 CFR §85.36).

Before initiating any contract, RCHC shall ensure that there are sufficient funds: avanlabie to cover the:

anticipated cost of the contract or modification (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).
Independent Cost Estimate (ICE)

The Independent Cost Estimate (ICE) is RCHC s estimate of the costs of : the goods or servicestobe'

- acquired under a contract or a modification. It serves as-a yardstick for evaluating the reasonableness

of the contractor’s proposed costs or prices. The ICE also helps the procurement staff determine the s
-contracting method to be used. For.example, if the costs can be estimated with a high degree of

confidence in their accuracy, sealed blddmg may be possible (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

While the Contraeting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the ICE, other personnel are usually -
involved and may actually do most of the preparation. RCHC may develop the ICE using its own- -

. personnel, outside parties (e.g., consultants), or a combination of the two. If any outside party (whether

compensated or not) assists in developing the ICE, RCHC must take appropriate steps to ensure that
organizational conflicts of interest are avoided and that the outside party does not obtain any compehtwe :

advantage from its advance knowledge of RCHC's cost estimate
- (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

For all purchases above the Micro Purchase threshold (less than $3,000, or less than $2 000 i inthe -
-~ case of acquisitions for construction subject to the Davis-Bacon Act), RCHC shall prepare an ICE prior .
- to solicitation. The level of detail shall be commensurate wnth the cost and complexity of the item to be

. purchased (HACR Procurement Pohcy)

Contract Provisions
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: ; When entenng into a contract with a vendor is necessary and appropriate, alt contracts should |dent|fy" ’
‘the contract pricing arrangement as well as other pertinent terms and conditions, as determined by

- RCHC. Subject to General Council advice and approval, contract provisions that may be appﬁcablev. o

include:
1. Administrative, contractual or legal remedies in instances where contractors vmla% or breach
- contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. :
- 2. For.contracts in excess of $10,000- termination for cause and for convenience by. RCHC .
- including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. -
- 3. For construction contracts in excess of $10,000- compliance with Executive Order 11246 of
~ September 24, 1965, entitled “Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order
11375 of October 13, 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR
: Chapter 60). '

4. For contraets for constructlon or repair - compliance with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback® Act {18

" "U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR §3)..

5. For construction contracts in excess of $2,000, and in excess of $2,500 for other contracts which .

involve the employment of mechanics or laborers- compliance with sections 103 and 107 of the
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-330) as suppiemented by
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR §5).

6. For contracts, subcontracts and sub-grants of amounts in excess of $50,000- comphanae with
all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act

(42 U.S.C. §1857(h)), section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. §1368), Execuftwe Order

11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations

7.. Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to:

~ a) Reporting. ' :
b) Patent rights with respect to any discovery or invention which arises or is developed in the

course of or under such contract. , -
- c¢) Copyrights and rights in data. :
8. Access by RCHC, the federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, or
~ any of their duly authorized representatives to any books, documents, papers, and records of

the contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract for the purpose of making.
audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.

9. Requirement for contractor to retain all contract-related records for not less than three years,
‘after RCHC makes final payments and all other pendlng matters are closed (40 CFR §15)

Contract Register :
In"order to avoid the purchase of unnecessary or duplicative items, RCHC shall maintain a Con’tract :
Register or Log. Such a Register will allow RCHC to review its record of prior purchases, as well as'
future needs, to identify patterns of procurement actions that could be performed more efficiently or -
economically. Register details should include relevant information such as contract effectwe dates
termmatlon dates and ceiling amount (OIG Audit Report No. 2011-A0-0001). -

- Labor Standards and Wage Rates ‘ '
Certain projects may be subject to specific requirements for labor standards and payment of prevanmg
wage rates. The applicability of such requirements depends on the project’s funding source(s). RCHC

- is responsible for the administration and enforcement of any applicable labor standard requtrements on .

~ covered projects.

Eederal F unds and/or Public Housing Projects. Projects mvolvmg the use of federal funds and/or pubhc :

housing or public housing funds are subject to federal labor standards promulgated by the Department

- of Labor pursuant to the Davis-Bacon Act. Federal prevailing wages must generally be paid to all

laborers and mechanics involved in construction contracts in excess of $2,000. Details regarding the
QDaws—Bacen Act, including exclusions, are provided at 40 U.S.C. §§276a——276a-7 3141 29 CFR §§1
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3 and 5; and HUD Handbook 1344.1. Davis-Bacon Wage Decisions can be obtained at Mw_g_g_p_
(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

‘Thresholds tnggering' Davis-Bacon requirements may vary for specific federal funding sources such as:

1. HOME- if the contract is in excess of $2,000 and involves 12 or more units (24 CFR §92.354);

2. CDBG- if the contract is in excess of $2,000 and involves 8 or more units (24 CFR §570.603).

_M_m@gtg Projects involving the use of state funds are subject to labor and wage standards
“prescribed by the California Department of Industrial Relations. California state prevailing wages must
be paid to all workers employed on a public works project when the public works project is over $1,000.
State prevailing wage determinations can - be obtained ~ at

: http:/lmww.dir.ca; ggv/gPRL/DPrengeDeterminan'on htm.

~ In some instances, state prevailing wages are preempted by federal prevarlmg wages. Details

- describing such circumstances may be found at 24 CFR §965. Appropriate Federal preemption
language is included in the labor standards clauses found in forms HUD-5370, 5370-EZ and 5370-C
(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

Other and/or Multiple Funding Sources. Specific grants and other funding sources may contarn their
own labor standard and wage provisions. Where there is more than one funding source and more than

one set of labor standards and/or wage provisions, the most restrictive of the reqwrements shall apply.

Volunteers on Prevailing Wage Projects. On projects in which RCHC receives the. services “of
volunteers, RCHC must maintain records relating to any work that is performed on projects or contracts
otherwise covered by federal prevailing wage requirements. :
1. For projects that utilize all-volunteer labor, these records must include the name and address of -
the agency sponsoring the project, a description of the project, the number of volunteers, the
hours of work they performed, and where a waiver of prevailing rates is involved, the type of -
- work performed by the volunteers (See 24 CFR, Part 70, §70.5(c)) . o
2. For projects that utilize a mix of volunteer and paid workers, these records must.include the
items above, and the names of the volunteers (HUD Handbook 1344.1 Ch. 2).

Disclosures and Record-Keeping. Solicitations (e.g., Invitations for Bids) and contracts subject to the
- above labor standards and wage requirements must contain the applicable wage demsron and labor
standards provisions (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). ,

RCHC shall retain all comphance monitoring records, including employee interview records, for a period.

of not less than ten (10) years from the date of contract completion and acceptance by RCHC, or from
- the date of resolution of any labor standards issues outstanding at contract compietion (HUD: Handboek
7460 8, Rev; 2 and RCHC Records Retention Policy).

Funding and Payment '
RCHC shall ensure that funds are available for any purchases made and that there is an orderly process
to pay contractors promptly. Work performed shall be inspected in a timely manner and contractor

invoices for work accepted by RCHC shall be paid in a timely manner RCHC shall utilize appropriate -

~internal controls such as budgets and purchasing thresholds to assure the proper expenditure of funds
(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

- Upon receipt of goods, fiscal staff processing accounts payable will match a copy of the PG and the -
packing slip, receiver or receipt to the invoice before processing for payment. If any discrepancies exist
with the amount of the PO, project number, account number, etc., fiscal staff will contact the requesting
procurement staff before payment is made (HACR Procurement Procedures) . :
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Procurement staff is responsible for approving the invoice and assuring that the total amount of the
purchases does not exceed the balance of the PO. Fiscal Services will ensure that the total amount of
_the invoice does not exceed the balance remaining on a Blanket Purchase Order (BPO), if apphcable
. (HACR Procurement Procedures).

Review of Procurement Policy -
RCHC shall review its Procurement Policy biennially. Any changes in the procurement environment:
(e.g., new laws, regulations, market conditions, or buying needs and practices of the corporation) should
-be considered when determining whether the procurement policies and procedures continue to adhere.
to all-applicable laws and regulations and also to meet the corporation’s current and future needs (HUD -
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

RCHC should periodically review its record of prior purchases, as well as future needs, to find patterns
of procurement actions that could be performed more efficiently or economically. ltems purchased
repetitively might be obtained more economically through various master contracts. However,
-consideration should be.given to storage, security, and handling requirements when planning these
types of purchasing actions (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). : : :

Interactions between RCHC and HACR

HUD considers- RCHC to be HACR in conjunction with public housing development activities. For

- projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC is required to follow the ACC and
conflict-of interest provisions of 24 CFR § 85, as though it were a PHA (HUD Notice PIH 200715
extended as PIH 201 1-47). _

Pursuant to HUD Handbook 7460.8 Rev. 2, funds provided by HACR's COCC to RCHC are not
considered public housing funds and are therefore not subject to the procurement standards set forth -

at 24 CFR §85.36 and the Procurement Handbook for Public Agencies, HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. -

2

ntergovemmgn:alllnte[aggncy Noncomgetltlve Procurement. RCHC may enter into agreements with

HACR or other state or local government agencies to obtain needed supplies or services if such
agreements will foster economy and efficiency. For the purposes of this section, an agreement between
RCHC. and HACR or another state or local agency would be considered “intergovernmental’ or
“interagency” because of RCHC's status as an instrumentality of HACR. The use of these: types of

agreements can significantly reduce the amount of time required to contract for supplies or services,
while allowing RCHC to take advantage of prices obtained through volume purchasing by HACR or

another local or state agency (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

For  projects  involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC may. ‘enter into- such

intergovernmental or interagency purchasing agreements (including with HACR) without competitive -

procurement provided the following conditions are met:

1. The agreement provides for greater economy and efficiency and results in cost savings to

~ RCHC. Before utilizing an interagency agreement for procurement, RCHC should compare the

cost and availability of the identified supplies or services on the open market with the cost of

purchasing them through HACR or another unit of government to determine if it is the most
~economical and efficient method,;

2. The agreement is used for common supplies and services that are of a routine nature only. In
deciding whether it is appropriate for RCHC to obtain supplies or services through an
intergovernmental agreement rather than through a competitive procurement, the nature of the
required supplies or services will be a determining factor. If services, required by RCHC, are

provided by HACR or the state and are part of that government's normal duﬂes and -
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responsibilities, it is permissible for RCHC to share the services and cost of staff under an-
agreement. For example, RCHC could enter into an intergovernmental agreement, without
competitive procurement, to use the services of HACR’s accounting office to conduct an-annual
audit of its books. RCHC could not, however, without competitive procurement, enter into an
intergovernmental agreement with a local police department to purchase cabinets manufactured

by the police department (the manufacturing of cabinets is not a normal function of - a law

enforcement agency);
RCHC must take steps to ensure that any supplies or services obtained using another agency s

_contract are purchased in-.compliance with 24 CFR 85.36;

RCHC’s procurement files should contain a copy of the Intergovernmental Agreement and
documentation showing that cost and availability were evaluated before the agreement was
executed, and these factors are reviewed and compared at least annually with those contarned
in the agreement; and L
The agreement must be between RCHC and HACR or other state or local govemmental agency :
“(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). : '

Terms of Inte[,qogergmentgtllntgragency Agreements. RCHC should consider: mclusron of the followmg’

~ provisions in its intergovernmental agreements:

©C® NoasWN=

10.
11

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

17.

Identification of the parties;

Effective date;

Basic purpose of the agreement;

Procedures for providing lists of needed items;

Description of items to be purchased;

Identification of lead party in the procurement; :
Rules or codes that should be followed in the procurement (RCHC procurement pottcy, state

-procuréement code, federal regulatlons etc.);

Delivery terms;

Type of contract;

Warranty terms; :

Any fees to be paid to the lead agency;

Procedures for resolving disputes with contractors;

Procedures for resolving disputes between the parties;

Procedures for bilateral modification or early termination of the agreement

Any provisions for meetings on specification issues; g
Non-exclusivity clause (the right to conduct separate procurements notwﬂhstandlng the
existence of a cooperative purchasing agreement); and

Authorized signatures and titles (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

'HUD Review Requirements

HUD review of RCHC's procurement activity i |s limited to those actions mvolvrng public housing or publrc :
housing funds (HUD Handbook 7460. 8 Rev. 2). ‘

The following contracting actions shall have prior HUD approval when public housing or publrc housing
funds are involved:

1.

2.
3.
4.

Noncompetitive procurements expected to exceed the federal small purchase threshold;
Brand name-only procurements expected to exceed the federal small purchase threshold;

Awards over the federal small purchase threshold to other than the apparent low brdder under |

a sealed bid;

-Proposed contract modifications that change the scope of the contract (as per the “Changes”
clause in forms HUD-5370, HUD-5370-C or HUD-5370-EZ2) or rncreasrng the contract amount
by more than the federal small purchase threshold:
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5. Use of the RFQ method of procurement for other than architecture and engineering (A/E)
services, joint venture partners or developers, or energy service contracts; ’
6. If HACR (and therefore RCHC) is operating under the “old” ACC 53010 and 53011 any .
~~agreement or contract for professional, management, fee accountants, legal, or other -
professional services with any person or firm if the total penod or term of the contmct lnctuding :
renewal option provisions, exceeds two years;
7. Procurements for legal or other non-personal services in connection with Iltlgatiacn per HUD’ :
- - Litigation Handbook; that exceed $100,000;
8. Procurements that exceed the amount included in:
a) the HUD-approved development cost budget; or
b) Where HUD has required prior approval on a Notice of Deficiency or corrective act:on order
* under the Capital Fund Program;

9. Contracts that exceed five years, including options. To approve terms in excess of fave years, -

‘the HUD field office must determine there is no practical alternative;

10. If HACR (and therefore RCHC) is operating under the “old” ACC and RCHC enters mto a
transaction with any joint venture, subsidiary, affiliate, or other identity-of-interest entity. Sectronv_
515 of the old ACC specifies that such transactions must comply with the conflict of interest
provisions that apply to RCHC. If HACR (and therefore RCHC) is operating under the “new”
ACC, RCHC must comply with the conflict of mterest provisions under section 19 of the new
ACC; and

11. Solicitations, and any resulting contracts, related to energy. performance contractmg and utmty
add-ons (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

For development projects, RCHC shall submit to the HUD field office for prior approval A/E contracts,
fee appraiser contracts, development manager contracts, construction solicitations, constructlonw
contracts and contract modlflcatlons (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev 2).

RCHC shall be ‘exempt from HUD's pre-award review required if: : ' - '
1. RCHC requests, and HUD subsequently certifies, that its procurement system be reviewed by
the field office to determine if its systems meet the standards under 24 CFR 85.36 and the
essential requirements of HUD Handbooks 7485.1 and 7460.8, Rev. 2; or : :
2. RCHC self-certifies that its procurement system meets the standards under 24 CFR 85. 36 and
the essential requirements of this Handbook and HUD Handbook 7485.1. ,

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

The following portlon of RCHC’s Procurement Policy applies only to Public Houstng pro;ects or activities
involving Public Housing Funds. In 2016, HACR participated in the HUD sponsored Rental Assistance
. Demonstration Program (RAD), under which ownership of the County's Public Housing stock was
transferred to RCHC. Housing units previously included in HACR’s Public Housmg program now:ecefve 8
-Section 8 project based vouchers.

Subsequent to the transition under RAD, the County of Riverside no Ionger had a Public ‘H’c’zusmg
program and no longer receives Public Housing funds. As such, Policies and Procedures pertaining to
Public Housing Projects or Public Housing funds no longer apply. The below portion of RCHC's Poiicies - .
and Procedures is retained herein strictly i in the instance that HACR’s Public Housing program is mv:ved: '

in the future.

- Public Housing Projects: Special Procurement Considerations '
As an instrumentality of HACR, RCHC is subject to the PHA procurement requirements of 24 CFR
§85.36 and 24 CFR §941 Subpart F for projects which involve public housing or public housing funds.
On those projects, RCHC must procure third party members, partners and sub-contragtors of its -
’operational or development team (e g. architects, consultants, contractors, aﬁomys, etc) in
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. compliance with the standards set forth at 24 CFR §85.36 and the Procurement Handbook for Public

Agencies HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev 2 (HUD Notice PIH 2007-15 extended as PIH 2011-47).

Because these distinct set of standards apply to RCHC activities on projects which -involve public |
housing or public housing funds, policies and procedures for these particular project requirements are

“prefaced with the subcategory title “Public Housing Project”. For the purposes of this section, “Public

Housing Project” applies to any project which involves public housing or public housing funds. Pursuant
to' HUD Handbook 7460.8 Rev. 2, funds provided by HACR’s Central Office Cost Center (COCC) to
RCHC are not considered federal funds.

Public Housing Projects: Conflicts of Interest in Procurement
For.projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC'’s procurements shall ob@erve the

conflict of interest standards set forth in this manual’s Conflict of Interest Code, Appendix J, mc!udmg

the requirements in subsection of this Manual titled "Projects Involving Public Housxng and/or Publlc

- Housing Funds”.

: ) Public Housing Projects: Gratuities, Kickbacks, and Use of Confidéntial Information

No RCHC Officer, Board member, current employee, former employee within one year of employment,

or agents shall ask for or accept gratuities, favors, or items of more than $25 in value from any.

contractor, potential contractor, or party to any subcontract, and shall not knowingly use conﬁdenhal :

' mformatton for actual or anticipated personal gain (HACR Procurement Policy).

It is a breach of ethical conduct and prohibited for any payment, graturty or offer of employment to be
made by, or on behalf of, a contractor or subcontractor under contract to the prime contractor, ‘higher

tier subcontractor, or any person associated therewith as an inducement for the award of a

subcontractor order (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Disclosure of confidential information to any person not authorized by the Contracting Officer. to recewe
such information is a breach of ethical standards. Confidential information includes but is not necessarily

limited- to: the contents of a bid (prior to bid opening) or proposal (prior to contract award using
competitive proposals), names of individuals or firms that submitted bids (prior to bid. opening) or

proposals (prior to contract award); RCHC-generated information related to a procurement (mcluding
RCHC cost estimates, contractor selection and evaluation plans, specifications [befare solicitation is
issued]); and any other information the disclosure of which would have a direct bearing upon the

-contract award or the competitive process. It is a breach of ethical conduct for any current or former

employes, Officer, or agent to knowingly use confidential information for actual or anticipated parsonal :
gain or for actual or anticipated personal gain of any other person (HUD Handbook 7460 8, Rev 2).

Public Houslng Projects: Prohibition against Contingent Fees

Contractors wanting to do business with RCHC on projects involving public housing or pubuc housing
funds must not hire a person to solicit or secure a contract for a commission, percentage, brokerage, -
or contingent fee, except for bona fide established commercial selling agencies (HACR Procurement

- Policy). This prohibition includes the employment of former RCHC officials and employees on a

contingency basis to obtain contracts with RCHC by a business seekmg RCHC contracts (HUD, :
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). «

Public Housmg Pfo;gects Ownership Entity Considerations :
If RCHC is a general partner or managing member of the owner entity on a project mvolvmg public -
housing or public housing funds or occupies a position that allows RCHC (or HACR) to exercise -

significant functions as to the management of the development, then procurements by the owner entity
are subject to the provisions of 24 CFR §85 36 (24 CFR §941 (d) and HUD Notice PiH 2007-1 5 extended

as PIH 2011-47).
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Rvoride Community

Actions that are considered to be exercising significant functions are:
1. When RCHC (or HACRY) is acting as the sole or managing general partner in the owner entity.
2 When RCHC (or HACR) is acting as developer (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

The followmg are examples of actions that are not considered significant functions:
Monitoring units receiving operating subsidy to ensure compliance with various reguiaﬂons
Coordinating communications with agencies regarding project financing and’ operahons
~Providing Community and Supportive Services (CSS) services. :
Attending construction meetings, reviewing and approving draws
- Maintaining the waiting list.
Reviewing and approving operating and capltal budgets (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).
Having limited rights as a limited partner or minority member, including a purchase option-or:
right of first refusal (HUD Notice PIH 2007-15 extended as PIH 2011-47).

ﬂ@@P@Ne

When both public housing and non-public housing funds are used for a pro;ect the work to be
accomplished with the funds should be separately identified prior to procurement so that appropriate
requirements can be applied, if necessary. If it is not possible to separate the funds, public housing
procurement regulations shall be applied to the total project (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Public Housing Projects Contracting with Sub-G rantees

For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC may decide to use sub-grantees
to complete elements of the project including development and community supportive services (CSS)
programs. RCHC is responsible for ensuring that sub-grantees are aware of the requirements imposed
on them by federal statutes and regulations as well as any requirements of grant agreements. RCHC
must ensure that sub-grants include any clauses required by federal statutes and executive orders and
their implementing regulations. RCHC shall “monitor compliance by sub—grantees (HUD- Handbook
7460.8, Rev. 2).

Sub—grantees ‘are considered to be actmg as RCHC. Sub-grantees who procure supplies or serviees
will be subject to 24 CFR §85 if the sub-grantee is a governmental agency, or 24 CFR §84 if it is-a non-
profit sub-grantee (HUD Handbook 7480.8, Rev. 2).

Public Housing Projects: Competition

For projects involving public_housing or public housing funds, all procurement transactions wm be
conducted in a manner providing full and open competition. Some of the situations consudered to be
restnctlve of competition include but are not limited to:

Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to-do busmess
Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding,

Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated companies,
Noncompetitive awards to consultants that are on retainer contracts,

Organizational conflicts of interest,

Specifying only a brand name product instead of allowing ‘an equal product to be oﬂ‘ered and
describing the performance of other relevant requirements of the procurement, and

7. Any arbttrary action in the procurement process. (24 CFR §85. 36)

R WN=

Public Housing Projects: Self-Certification

RCHC self-certifies that this Procurement Policy and RCHC's procurement system comply with all
applicable federal regulations. As such, RCHC is exempt from prior HUD review and. approval of
individual procurement actions (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Public Housing Projects: Procurement Methods
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Figure 2. Procurement methods for projects involving public housing or public housing funds.

For projects rnvolvmg public housing or public housing funds, RCHC shall encourage full an_d open R

competition in procurement matters. The following methods of procurement are acceptable. ,
1. Small Purchase. Small purchase procedures are those relatively simple and informal
procurement methods for securing services, supplies, or other property that do not cost more
than the simplified acquisition threshold fixed at the lesser of HACR’s small purchase threshold

(currently set at $50,000) or the limit set forth in 41 U.S.C. 403(11) (currently set at $100,000).

- If small purchase procedures are used, price or rate quotations shall be obtained from an
adequate number of qualified sources. There are three (3) small purchase procurement
methods: ‘

a) Petty Cash. Purchases under $50 may be handled through the use of a petty cash account.
Petty cash accounts may be established in an amount sufficient to cover small purchases
made during a reasonable period (e.g., one month). RCHC shall ensure that security is
maintained and only authorized individuals have access to the account. These accounts :

- should be reconciled and replenished periodically. ‘

'b) Micro Purchases. Purchases of less than $3,000 (or $2,000 in the case of acquisitions for‘
construction subject to the Davis-Bacon Act) are micro purchases.

c) - Small Purchases. Purchases of $3,000 (or $2,000 in the case of acquisitions for constructron
subject to the Davis-Bacon Act) to $50,000 are small purchases.

2. Sealed Bids. Sealed bidding shall be used for all contracts that exceed the small purchase
' threshold and that are not competitive proposals or non-competitive proposals, as these terms
are defined in this section. Under sealed bids, RCHC publicly solicits bids and awards a firm
fixed-price contract (lump sum or unit price) to the responsible bidder whose bid is responsive

(conforming exactly with all the material terms and conditions of the invitation to bid) and is the -

lowest in.price. Sealed bidding is the preferred method for procuring construction, supply, and

non-complex service contracts that are expected to exceed $50,000. Further information on the
sealed bid method may be found below in the sub-section tltled “Public Housing Projects: §§§§ :

- Bid Procedures”.
3. Competitive Proposals. Competitive proposals are normally conducted thh more than one

- source submitting an offer, and either a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement type contract is
awarded. This procurement method is generally used when conditions are not appropriate for
the use of sealed bids. Further information on the competitive proposal method may be found

below in the sub-section titled “Public Housing Projects: Comggtrtrvg Proposal Procedu g_s_"
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4. Noncompetitive Proposals. Procurement by noncompetltrve proposals is procurement thmugh .
solicitation of a proposal from only one source, or after solicitation of a number of sources, 7
competition is determined inadequate (24 CFR §85.36 and HACR Procurement Policy). Further -
information on the competitive proposal method may be found below in the sub-section: ’ﬂtled;

“Public ngsmg Projects: Noncomp_etrtrve Proposal Progedures"

Public Housing Projects: COSt Principles
For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC shall use the applicable set of cost:

~principles that have been issued by the federal government when performing a cost analysis. In all-

cases, proposed costs must be allowable pursuant to applicable cost principles, allocable (related to or

required in the performance of the contract) and reasonable (what a prudent busrness would pay ina

competitive marketplace) (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev 2).

- Each set of cost principles applies to contracts with a specific group or type of organlzatrons, 80 one set’

will not work for all contracts. The cost principles and the type of contractor entity to which they apply j
are as follows:
1. OMB Circular A-122 for contracts with most nonprofit organizations.
2. OMB Circular A-21 for educational institutions. '
3. . Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR), found at 48 CFR Chapter 1, Subpart 31.2 for profitmaking
entities (e.g., commercial business concerns) and certain nonprof it organizations listed in
Attachment C of OMB Circular A-122 (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Public Housing Projects: Speclﬂcatrons and Statements of Work ‘ o
A specification is a description of the technical requirements of a contract including ‘a detarbd

- .description of materials, supplies, equipment, pre-cuts, or construction work that is used in the
- procurement process to tell prospective contractors precisely what RCHC desires to purchase. A

statement or scope of work (SOW) is a written description of work to be performed that establishes the
standards sought for the supplies or services furnished under the contract and is typlcaﬂy used for
service contracts (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

Properly prepared or described specifications and SOWs (1) enhance competition, and (2) clarify the

. relationship between the contractor and RCHC, resulting in improved contract administration. The SOW

also becomes the standard for measuring contractor performance. When a question arises over an:
apparent increase in the scope of the work to be performed, the SOW is the baseline document for
resolving the question. For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, the specifications

-or SOW must be desrgned so as not to restrict competition to one supplrer (HUD Handbook 7460.8,

Rev. 2).

Most specifications contain a combination of design and performance requirements and may mclude
brand name or equivalent (2 CFR §§200.317-200.326) descriptions of components.

1. Functional or performance specifications contain performance characteristics that are:desired
for the item or that identify how the item functions. A functional or performance specification is
inherently risky. Performance specifications  state the overall requirements: so. that each
contractor may furnish its own item to meet the required performance. '

2. Design- specifications contain a description of the item desired as opposed to performance
standards and may be as detailed as needed. Depending on the nature of the item, the design

- specifications may contain precise measurements, tolerances, materials, product tests, quality
control, and other detailed information, provided competition is not being limited to one product.
The information furnished in the specification should be sufficiently detailed to ensure that all
items manufactured to the specrflcatlons will be virtually the same (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev.
2. S
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3. Brand name or equivalent (2 CFR §§200.317-200.326) specifications provide c!ear and
accurate product descriptions. References to brand names shall be followed by the words “or

equal” and a description of the item’s essential characteristics so that competition is not

restricted. When brand names or catalog numbers are used, inform the offerors that such
references establish only design or quality standard; in fact, any other products that c&eariy and”

demonstrably meet the standard are also acceptable.

4. RCHC shall avoid geographic restrictions not mandated or encouraged by apphcable federal .
law (except for architecture/engineering contracts, which may include geographic location as:

selection factor if adequate competition is available) (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

The particular issues to be addressed in a SOW will vary with the nature, purpose, size, and complexﬂy »

of the work. At a minimum, every SOW should include:
Detailed work and task requirements;

considered acceptable;
- Delivery schedules/period of performance
Any reporting and compliance requirements;
A precise statement of the objectives;
RCHC contact person/contract administrator; and
Other special considerations. (warranties, personnel and required classmcatmns testmg
procedures, procedural safeguards, etc.) (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). .

S ot A

Contractors funded to develop or draft specifi catlons requirements, statements of work; mv;tattons for

bid, or requests for proposals shall be excluded from competing in the procurement (HUD Handbook
7460 8, Rev. 2).

' Public Housing Projects: Small Purchase Procedures
- -Cost Analysis. RCHC shall require assurance that, before entering into a contract, the prlce is
reasonable, in accordance with the following instructions.

1. Petty Cash and Micro Purchases. No formal cost or price analysis is required for petty cash and: -
~~-micro purchases. Rather, the execution of a contract by the Contracting Officer (through a-
Purchase Order or other means) shall serve as the Contracting Officer's determination that the
price obtained is reasonable, whlch may be based on the Contracting Officer's prior experience -

or other factors.

2. Small Purchases of $3 000 (or $2,000 in the case of acqws:tlons for constructlon subject to the

Davis-Bacon Act) to $50,000. A comparison with other offers shall generally be sufficient

determination of the reasonableness of price and no further analysis is required: If a réasonable -
number of: quotes is not obtained to establish reasonableness through price competition, RCHC E
shall document price reasonableness through other means, such as prior purchases of this
nature, catalog prices, the procurement staffs personal knowledge at the time of purchase

comparison to the ICE, or any other reasonable basis (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2)

RCHC shall negotiate profit as a separate element of the price for each contract in wh:ch there isno i

price competition and in all cases where cost analysis is performed. To establish a fair and reasonable

profit, consideration will be given to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the

contractor, the contractor's investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record of past
- performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographncal area for similar work (24 CFR
. §85. 36).

- Inall cases, pfoposed costs must be allowable pursuant to applicable cost principles, allocable (related
, kto or required in the performance of the contract) and reasonable (what a prudent business would pay
ina competlt:ve marketplace) (HUD Handbook 7480.8, Rev. 2).
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Solicitation. For petty cash and micro purchases, RCHC may contact only one source if the price-is
considered reasonable (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). To the greatest extent feasible, and to
promote competition, small purchases should be distributed among qualified sources. Quotes may be
obtained orally (either in person or by phone), by fax, in writing, or through e-procurement. Award shall
be made to the qualified vendor that provides the best value to RCHC. If award is to be made for reasons
~other than lowest price, documentation shall be provided in the contract file. RCHC shall not break down
a purchase into into several purchases that are less than the applicable threshold merely to avoid any
requlrements that apply to micro purchases.

For small purchases between $3,000(or $2,000 in the case of acquisitions for constructron subject fo
the Davis-Bacon Act) and $50,000, RCHC shall obtain a reasonable number of quotes (preferably
three). A no-bid from a vendor does not constitute one of the three bids. If no bids are received, at
least five vendors must be contacted to complete the procurement process. - To the greatest extent
feasible, and to promote competition, small purchases should be distributed among qualified sources.
Award shall be made to the qualified vendor that provides the best value to RCHC. If an award i is to be
made for reasons other than lowest price, documentation shall be provided in the contract: ﬁie

Written solicitations shall be used when it is necessary to provide vendors with detalled mformatton that'
cannot be effectively conveyed orally.

1. For small purchases of $3,000(or $2,000 in the case of acquisitions for constructlon suhgect to
the Davis-Bacon Act) to $20,000, solicitations may be obtained orally, by telephone orin writing.

2. For small purchases of $20,000 to $50,000, solicitations must be obtained in writing.

3. Award shall be made to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, unless justified in- wrmng
based on other specified factors, such as non-competitive, qualification-based, or sole source.
1f non-price factors are used, they shall be disclosed to all those solicited. -The names,
addresses and phone numbers of the offerors and persons contacted, the date and the amount
of each guotation shall be recorded (HACR Procurement Procedures)

RCHC shall not break down a purchase into several purchases that are less than the apphcabie-
threshold merely to avoid any requirements that apply to purchases that exceed the rmcro purchase.
threshold.

Purchase Order. Most purchases under the small purchase method will be done via a Purchase Order
(PO) sent or given to the contractor to initiate delivery of the item(s) or performance of the service(s).
The issuance of a PO by RCHC and its acceptance by the contractor (either through performance or
signature on the purchase order) constitute a contract. It is crucial, therefore, that the PO clearly
specifies the item(s) or service(s) belng purchased and the terms and conditions of the purchase (HUD
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

RCHC hereby adopts HACR’s PO format and procedures as set forth-in HACR’s Procurement Policy
and Procurement Procedures manuals, as it may be amended from time to time.

Ledg (or Purchasing) Cards. Credit card usage should follow the rules for all other small- pumhases
(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

" Documentation. RCHC shall document its small purchase procurements as follows
1. Petty Cash. Receipts and invoices shall be maintained.
2. Micro Purchases. Identification of the solicited vendors and a brief explanatton for the award
decision shall be maintained.
3. Small Purchases of $3,000 (or $2,000 in the case of acquisitions for construction subject to tbe
Daws-Bacon Act) to $50,000.
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a) Records of oral price quotations sufficient to reflect clearly the propnety of placing the orders
at the price paid with the particular vendor shall be established and maintained.

b) Written records of solicitations or offers shall show prices, delivery, references to: prmted -

“price lists used, the vendors contacted, and any other pertinent information.

¢) In special situations, include additional statements explaining the absence of competition if
only one source is solicited; or supporting the award decrsron if other than price-related
factors were considered in selecting the vendor.

- Public Housing PrOJects ‘Sealed Bid Procedures

For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, sealed brddmg sha|l be used for contracts
that exceed the small purchase threshold and that are not competrtlve proposals or non-competmve
proposals (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

Conditions for Use. Sealed brddrng is the preferred method for procuring construction, suppty and non-
complex service contracts that are expected to exceed $50,000 (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2) The
sealed bid method shall be used if the conditions in 24 CFR §85.36(d) (2) (i). apply as follows: -

1. A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is available;

2. Two or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively; and K

3. The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of the successful
bidder can be made principally on the basis of price (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev 2). '

Invitation for Bid (IFB). The IFB packages for supplies, services, or construction are quite similar. The
major difference is the length and complexity of the specifications or scope of work and the variety of
“attachments. All IFBs must be in 'writing. The basic documents to be included in an IFB package are:
1. Cover Page with Table of Contents, which states the name, address and phone number of the
corporation, a person to contact for information regarding the solicitation, the project name and
- solicitation number, and a table of contents for the complete solicitation package (HUD
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). ~

2. A statement that award will be made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder whose bid
meets the requirements of the solicitation.

3. A statement indicating the time and place for both receiving the bids and the public bid opening
(HACR Procurement Policy).

4. A Bid Form on which bidders enter their bid or price(s). The form must be clear, accurate, and
unambiguous.

5. Specification and Statement of Work with a description of the work or items requrred

6. Form HUD-5369, Instructions to Bidders for Contracts, Public and Indian Housing Programs

" (construction) or form HUD-5369-B, Instructions to Offerors Non-Construction.

7. Form HUD-5369-A, Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Bidders, Public
and Indian Housing Programs (construction) or form HUD-5369-C, Certlfrcatlons and
Representations of Offerors Non- Construction Contract.

8. Form HUD-5370, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction or form HUD—5370—C
General Conditions for Non-Construction Contracts, along with any appropriate Davis-Bacon or |
HUD wage decision for construction and maintenance work. (HUD Handbook 7460.8, R’ev 2).

Solicitation. Solicitations must be done publicly. While any of the following methods of solicitation can
‘be employed, RCHC should choose the method. which, consrdenng matters of economy provides for
full and open competition.
1. Advertising in newspapers or other print mediums of local or general circulations.
2. Advertising in various trade journals or publications (for construction).
3. Through the internet using e-procurement systems. However, all e—procurements must
otherwrse be in compliance with 24 CFR 85.36, state and local requirements; and RCHC’s own -
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- procurement policy. Steps must be taken to meet the requnrements for full and open competitlon
to avoid potential protests (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Notices/advertisements should state, at a minimum, the place, date, and time that the bids are due, the -
solicitation number, a contact who can provide a copy of, and information about, the solicitation, and a
brief description ‘of the needed items(s). A minimum of 30 days shall generally be prowded for -
preparatlon and submission of sealed bids (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

The solicitation must be run for a period sufficient to achieve effective competition, which, in the case
of paid advertisements, should generally be run not less than once each week for two consecutive

weeks. State or local law may impose additional advertising requirements (HUD Handbook 7460.8,

- Rev. 2).

Amendments. If a change to the IFB (e.g., specifications, plans, date or time for bid openmg, etc)

becomes necessary after it has been issued, the change must be accomplished by issuing a written

amendment, sometimes called an addendum. The amendment must indicate the IFB number, project:
title, issue date of the original IFB, and formally detail each change. Each amendment must be noted-

on RCHC's solicitation log. A copy of the amendment should be mailed to each prospective bidder who
-~ was provided the initial IFB package with acknowledgement required. If an amendment needs to be

- issued just before the scheduled bid opening date, the bid opening should be postponed for an adequate
period of time to permit the potential bidders to fully analyze the change and to submit tlmely bids (HUD
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

‘Cancellation. RCHC may cancel IFBs when necessary or when otherwise considered to be i in. the best
interest of the corporation (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). oo

An IFB may be canceled before blds/offers are due if any of the following apply
1. The supplies, services or construction is no longer required.
2. The funds are no longer available. o
3. Proposed amendments to the solicitation are of such magnitude that a new sohcnation would be:
best.
4. Other similar reasons (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

A solicitation may be canceled and all bids or proposals that have already been received may be
rejected if any of the following apply:

The supplies or services (including construction) are no longer requrred

Ambiguous or otherwise inadequate specifications were part of the solicitation;

All factors of significance to RCHC were not considered.

Prices exceed available funds and it would not be appropriate to adjust quantities to come within

available funds.

There is reason to believe that bids or proposals may not have been independently determined
- in open competition, may have been collusive, or may have been submitted in bad faith.
6. For good cause of a similar nature when it is in the best interest of RCHC (HUD Handbook

7460.8, Rev. 2).

rON S

L

Cancellations must be done in accordance with RCHC's written procurement policy and procedures. A
procurement official shall document the procurement file with the reasons and supporting facts for
canceling the IFB (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

A notice of cancellation shall be sent to all bldders/offerors solicited and, if approprlate shall’ explam

that they will be given an opportunity to compete on any re-sohc:tatlon or future procurement of srmﬂar
items (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev 2).
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ffall otherwise acceptable bids received in response to an IFB are at unreasonable prioesr, an analysis
should be conducted to see if there is a problem in either the specifications or RCHC'’s cost estimate. If

both are determined adequate and if only one bid i i8 received and the price is unreasonabie RCHC may: ¥

cancel the solicitation and either
1. Re-solicit using an RFP; or
2. Complete the procurement by using the competitive proposal method. RCHC must determme
in writing, that such action is appropriate, must inform all bidders of RCHC's intent to negotiate,
and must give each bidder a reasonable opportunity to negotiate (HUD Handbook 7460 8, Rev.
2).

If problems: are found with the specifications, RCHC should cancel the solicitation, revise . the

specifications and re-solicit using an IFB (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

‘Pre-Bid Conference. After the IFB is issued and before bids are due, a pre-bid conference may be held |

with prospective contractors to discuss the project requirements and details of the IFB. The conference

should be attended by procurement staff. A pre-bid conference is normally conducted for large or.- .
complex procurements. Notice of any scheduled conference should be included in the IFB. The timing’
of the conference should allow bidders enough time to review the IFB before the conference and

adequate time to prepare or revise their bids before the bid opening. At the conference, procurement

staff should state that nothing said at the conference will change any of the terms of the IFB unless a

subsequent written amendment to the solicitation is issued. A written summary of the conference should
be made available to anyone requesting it. The summary should also be provided to all those who

submitted IFBs or solicitations, not just those who attended the pre-bid conference. Attendarnce by

offerors at the pre-bid conference, while desirable, should not be mandatory, and non-attendees should
not be deemed non-responsive. RCHC should consider the need for all potential bidders to attend.

Attendance may not be necessary for firms familiar with the work and others may be unable to schedule
a representative to attend, although they may be well qualified to do the work at a reasonable price. To
impose a requirement to attend a pre-bid conference could unnecessarily limit competition (HUD

Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Cost Analysis. The presence of adequate competition should generally be sufficient to establish price

reasonableness. Where sufficient bids are not received, when the bid received is substantially more-
than the ICE or. where RCHC cannot reasonably determine price reasonableness, RCHC must conduct

a cost analysis, consistent with federal guidelines, to ensure that the price paid is reasonable. If only

one responsive bid is received from a responsible bidder, award shall not be made unless the pricecan

be determined to be reasonable, based on a cost or price analysis (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

RCHC shall negotiate profit as a separate element of the price for each contract in which there is no

price competition and in all cases where cost analysis is performed. To establish a fair and reasonable - )

_ profit, consideration will be given to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the
contractor, the contractor's investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record of past

performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work (24 CFR
. §85.36).

Inall cases, proposed costs must be allowable pursuant to applicable cost prmcnples allocable (related
to or required in the performance of the contract) and reasonable (what a prudent business. would pay -

in a competitive marketplace) (HUD Handbook 74680.8, Rev. 2).

- Bid Opening. Each bid must be dated and time-stamped immediately upon recelpt by RCHC. Sealed
bids should be stored in a locked bid box; cabinet, or safe to ensure that they are not opened or -
' vmxshandled prior to the bid openmg Sealed bids received after the time specified in the IFB should be :
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recorded as a late bid and kept unopened in the contract file. A late bid received before the award is
made may only be considered in accordance with the procedures listed in the form HUD—5369 temS,
or form HUD—5369-B item 6 (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). B :

To ensure fairness in the award process bids shal be publicly opened on the scheduled date and time
shown in the solicitation. A tabulation of all bids is prepared showing the name of each bidder and their
bid prices including alternates, if any, and the document becomes part of the official contract file. The
tabulation is public information and a copy may be sent to interested parties when requested.  No
commitment or statement regarding contract award should be made to any bidder at the bid opening
(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

: M1§tg15es in Bids. Whlle bidders must be bound by their bids (the “firm bid rule’ ) mrcumstances may
arise where correction or withdrawal of bids is proper arid may be permitted. Unless otherwise prohibited
by state orlocal law, bidders shall be permitted to withdraw or modify their bids by. written or facsimtte A
notice prior to bid opening. (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

After the bnd opening, the procurement staff should carefully review all buds to ensure that the btdders' :
have not made any obvious mistakes in their bids (e.g., the sum of individual bid line items does not
equal the total bid price). An item-by-item recalculation of the bid costs will often reveal the
miscalculation or error. If a bidder appears to have made a mistake, procurement staff should
immediately notify a bidder of any apparent mistake in his/her bid and request verification of the bid as

~ submitted. An RCHC procurement official should notify the bidder by phone, issue a follow-up letter-
containing the information conveyed in the call and add a copy of that letter to the contract file- (HUD
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

“In general bidders should not be permltted to change a bid after bid opening. In rare cases the revision
of a bid may be permitted if the bidder is able to present clear and convincing evidence of a mistake »
and the intended bid price. Examples of evidence may include: original work papers, bids from suppliers -

- and subcontractors used to develop the bid, bonding or insurance evidence supporting a different bid
price, etc. Failure or refusal by a bidder to provide adequate evidence shall result in the original bid
remaining unchanged. RCHC personnel should consult with legal counsel before allowing a change in
bid. If justified, a low bidder can be replaced with the next lowest bidder (HUD Handbook 7460 8, Rev.
2).

After bid opening, changes in bid prices or other provisions of bids prejudicial to the mterest of RCHC
or fair competition shall not be permitted (HACR Procurement Pollcy)

Withdrawal of Bids. Withdrawal of a bid is permissible if there is an obvious error in the bid such as a
math error, but the mistake must be readily apparent from the bid itself. A bidder may be permitted to
withdraw a low bid if a mistake is clearly evident on the face of the bid document, but the intended
correct bid is not similarly evident. A bidder may also be permitted to withdraw a low bid if the bidder
submits written evidence that clearly and convincingly demonstrates that a mistake was made. If RCHC
allows withdrawal, the bid bond (if any) should be returned to the bidder upon verification of the error.
Incases of alleged mistakes or requests for withdrawal, the decision to allow a correction or withdrawal
should only be made after consultatlon W|th RCHC's legal counsel (HUD Handbook 7460. 8 Rev 2).

Bonds/Guarantees. The purpose of these bonds is to ensure bidders will honor their bids, complete

work as contracted, and pay their subcontractors and suppliers. In sealed bid constructvon contracts
bonds or guarantees are required as follows:

1. Bid Bonds/Guarantees. A bid bond or guarantee ensures that if awarded the contract, thebtdder

will accept and perform the work under the contract. It also ensures that the bidder will not

attempt to withdraw or otherwise not fulfill the contract. Finally, the bid bond ensures that the
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- bidder will execute the contractual documents that are required within the time spec:fred in ‘the

solicitation, or forfeit all or part of the guarantee (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

a) For construction contracts exceeding $25,000, each bidder shall be required to submit a bid
guarantee equivalent to 10% of the bid price (HACR Procurement Policy). . e

b) A certified check, bank draft, U.S. Government Bonds at par value, bid bond secured by an
acceptable surety company, or other negotiable instrument may be accepted as a bid

- .guarantee. .

¢) Ifthe successful bidder refuses to sign the contract after award, the bld bond is forfetted and.
award will go to the next lowest responsive, responsible bidder. If there is not a responsive
and responsible next lowest bidder, the procurement should be re-bid. If a bid bond or
guarantee is not submitted with the bid, RCHC should reject the bid as non-responsive.

- RCHC should not return any bid bonds until the contract has been awarded and the required

performance and payments bonds have been furnished, until all bids have been rejected or
the time specified for acceptance of bids has expired.

Performance Bonds. The performance bond guarantees that if the contractor is unable to

~complete the contract, the surety company will step in to finish the work (HUD Handbook 7460.8,
“Rev. 2). For construction contracts exceeding $25,000, the successful bidder shall furnish any

one of the following:

- a) Aperformance and payment bond in a penal sum of 100% of the contract price; or

b) Separate performance and payment bonds, each for 50 % or more of the contract prlce or
c) A 20 % cash escrow; or

d) A 25 % irrevocable letter of credit (HACR Procurement Policy).

Payment Bonds. The payment bond is a method of ensuring that the contractor pays. the
subcontractors and suppliers. Failure to pay subcontractors for work performed in commercial
contracts may often lead to the subcontractor filing a mechanic’s lien against property owners

~-to obtain payment for services rendered (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). For construction
. contracts exceeding $25,000, the successful bidder shall furnish any one of the following: ‘

a) A performance and payment bond in a penal sum of 100% of the contract price; or :
b) Separate performance and payment bonds, each for 50 % or more of the contract price; or
c) A 20 % cash escrow; or

d A25% rrrevocable letter of credit (HACR Procurement Policy).

An acceptable surety (bonding) company is one that is authorized to do business in California. The
- surety: must be listed on the most recently published U.S. Treasury Circular 570: (often referred to as.
the T-List). Individual sureties are not permitted (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2) R

If the low bidder fails to provrde acceptable payment and performance bonds after award of the contract,
" RCHC should consider the bid guarantee forfeited and notify the surety company. The contract is then
‘terminated for default. The amount to be recovered from the bid bond or guarantee should equal at
least the difference between the defaulted bid and the next higher acceptable bid or the amount by -
which the bid accepted by resoliciting exceeds the defaulted contract (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2)

M_P_\Vﬁr_ The following steps should be used in awarding a contract based on the sealed bids
method of procurement:

1

Evaluate bids and any alternates If the apparent low bid exceeds the project budget, any

deductive alternates should be deducted, one at a time, to identify the bidder whose resulting

price falls within the budget. If alternate bid items are employed, and the apparent low bid falls
below the available budget, a similar process of applying the alternates one at a time may be
empioyed to identify the low bidder who includes the greatest number of alternates within the
available funding. RCHC should not use alternate prices as a way to select a preferred bidder.

Review the low bid for responsiveness. To be considered responsive, a bid must conform to the
material requirements of the IFB. RCHC must examine the low bid to be sure that the btdder did
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- not alter the specifications or other terms and conditions (e.g., delivery schedules, payment
terms, etc.) or attempt to impose different terms and conditions. If the bid does not conformto
the solicitation, it must be rejected and the next lowest bid examined for responsiveness.
Procurement staff shall document their findings regarding the low bidder's responsiveness in.
the procurement file. Minor informalities are not grounds for determmmg a bid to be

: nonresponsive. :
3. Determine if the bidder is responsible. Details are provided in the sub-section ugllg Houggng

Project: Contractor Resgons:blllty” (HUD Handbook 7460 8, Rev. 2).

" In the rare case when two or more low bids are equal in all respects, the award should be decided by
drawing lots or other random means of selection. Authority to use this method should be stated inthe
IFB (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). : . :

The Contracting Officer may waive minor informalities or allow the bidder to correct them.. Minor

informalities are matters of form rather than substance. They are insignificant mistakes that can be

waived or corrected without prejudice to the other bidders and have little or no effect on price, quantity,

quality, delivery, or contractual conditions. Examples include failure to: return the number of: signed bids
required by the bid package; sign the bid, provided that the unsigned bid is accompanied by other
documents indicating the bidder’s intent to be bound (e.g., a signed cover letter or a bid guarantee);
complete one or more certifications; or acknowledge receipt of an amendment or addendum, provided
that it is clear from the bid that the bidder received the amendment/addendum and intended to be bound ,
by its terms, orthe amendmentladdendum had a negligible effect on price, quantlty quality; or detivery-

(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). -

After evaluation of each bid, the responsive and responsible bidder that submits the bid whose dollar
value is lowest overall and meets all specified requirements shall be awarded the contract. Unsuccessful
bidders also should be notified in writing of the contract award (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2)

~ Bid Rejection. Rejectlon of any bid during the evaluation process shall be fully documented inctudlng
all reasons for the rejection. Any bid may be rejected if the Contracting Officer determines that the price.
is unreasonable. Determining a bid price to be unreasonable includes not only the total price of the bid,
but the prices for individual items as well. Any bid may be rejected if the prices for any of the iteims are
-materially unbalanced (such as bidding a high price for the first items to be provided and then low prices
for subsequent items). A bid is materially unbalanced if and when there is a reasonable doubt that the
bid would result in the lowest overall cost to RCHC even if it is the lowest bid, or if the bid is so grossly
unbalanced that accepting it would amount to an advance payment (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Multi-Step Bids. RCHC may use two-step or multi-step sealed blddlng procedures where appropnate
This process is described in more detail in HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2)

Public Housing Projects: Competitlve Proposal Procedures
For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, the competitive proposal method is the

primary alternative to sealed bidding for contract requirements that exceed the small purchase threshold
(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). . ‘

The competitive proposal method permlts consnderatlon of technical factors other than price discussion
with offerors concerning offers submitted; negotiation of contract price or estimated cost and other
contract terms and conditions; revision of proposals before the final contractor selection; and the
withdrawal of an offer at any time up until the point of award. Award is normally made on the basis of
the proposal that represents the best overall value to RCHC considering price and other factors (e.g.,
technical expertise, past experience, quality of proposed staffing, etc) set forth in the solicitation and
not solely the Iowest price (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).
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Conditions for Use. This technique is normally conducted with more than one source submlthng an
offer, and either a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement type contract is awarded. It is generally used when
- conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids. Generally, the competitive proposals method
should be used whenever any of the following conditions exist:
1. The project requirements cannot be described specifically enough to permit the use of sealed -

. bidding. In other words, the work is not definite enough to accurately estimate the totai cost of
the contract.

2. The nature of the requirements are such that RCHC needs to evaluate more than just price to
be sure that the prospective contractor understands the corporation’s needs and can
successfully complete the contract, especially when contracting for professional setvices (e.g.,
legal, - architect-engineer, accounting, etc.) where RCHC needs specific - expertise. and

- experience.

3. Therequested work lends itself to different approaches, e. g proposals (HUD Handbook 7460.8,

Rev. 2). ,

If not self-evident, the rationale for choosing competitive proposals rather than sealed. bidding
procedures should be documented in the procurement file (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2)

Tygeg of Comgetltlve Prgposal There are two types of competitive proposals
1. Request for Proposals (RFP)

2. Requests for Qualifications (RFQ) (HUD Handbook 7460. 8 Rev 2).

Rgguest for Proposals (RFP) Format. The RFP should contain the following mformatlon
Cover Page
- Table of Contents
Statement of Work (SOW)
Submission requirements, along with pricing instructions
Evaluation factors
Attachments (including mandatory forms)
Mandatory forms/contract provisions
a) Form HUD-5369-B, Instructions to Offerors — Non-Construction. ' :
~ b) Form HUD-5369-C, Certifications and Representations of Offerors — Non- Constructlon
Contract (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :
RCHC should make sure that the submission requirements are consistent with the factors used for
evaluation. For example, if the RFP indicates that proposals will be evaluated based on similar
_experience in the particular activity, RCHC should make sure that it requests respondents to include
information on relevant past experience (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

NOOR LN

RFP_Evaluation Fgctor A mechanism for fairly and thoroughly evaluating the technical and price

proposals shall be established before the solicitation is issued (HACR Procurement Policy). “The RFP

must contain a clear statement of the evaluation factors to guide the offerors in structunng their
proposal. - '

1. Non-price factors; also called “technical factors.” The wntten statement of evaluation factorsand

their relative values clarifies each important factor to the offerors and ensures a fair selection
process. The evaluation criteria should be tailored to fit each procurement (HUD Handbook
7460.8, Rev. 2).

Typical evaluation criteria include the following:
a) Demonstrated understanding of the requirement :
b) Appropriateness of the technical approach. in the proposal (mcludlng labor categones
estimated hours, and skill mix)

200f 46
h,\depamnem\houung\nversxde community housing corp (rchc)\forms 11%\2018\annual report 17-18:12-4-2018\rche fy-2017-18 annual report.docx




WY o ' | ‘ Procurement Policy -

¢) Quality of the work plan
d) Technical capabilities (in terms of personnel, equipment, and matenals) and -
management plan (including staffing. of key positions, method of assigning work and
procedures for maintaining level of service, etc.) :
e) Demonstrated experience in performing similar work :
f) Demonstrated successful past performance (including meeting costs schedules, and
performance requirements) of contract work substantially similar to that required by the
solicitation as verified by reference checks or other means
2 Price must be a factor in making awards. In terms of evaluating price, RCHC has two optmns 3
which must be indicated in the RFP:
- a) Where price is assigned an explicit point(s)- RCHC may award price a specific number of
points. For example, RCHC may rank proposals on a 100-point scale. Of the total points,
RCHC may award, for example, 80 points for technical merit and 20 points for price. The e
amount of weight will be given to price versus technical factors must be determmed as well
as how to convert price into a point scale. _
b). Where price and other technical factors are considered- technical factors are ﬁrst determmed: B
and offerors are ranked. Then, prices are evaluated. RCHC can award to the offeror whose -
price and technical factors are the most advantageous to the corporation (HUD Handbook
7460.8, Rev. 2).
RFP Solicitation. Solicitations must be done publicly. While any of the following methods of solicitation
can be employed, RCHC should choose the method, which, considering matters of economy prov:des
for full and open competition. ,
- 1. Advertising in-newspapers or other print meduums of local or general cwculaﬂons
2. Advertising in various trade journals or publications (for construction).
3. Through the internet using e-procurement systems. However, all e-procurements - must
- otherwise be in compliance with 24 CFR 85.36, State and local requirements, and RCHC's own
procurement policy. Steps must be taken to meet the requirements for full and open competition -
to avoid potential protests (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Notices/advertisements should state, at'a minimum, the place, date, and time that the bids are due, the
solicitation number, a contact who can provide a copy of, and information about, the solicitation,.and a

brief description of the needed items(s). A minimum of 15 days shall generally be provided for

pfeparatlon and submission of competitive proposals (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

The sohcnation must be run for a period sufficient to achieve effective competition, whlch in the case
-of paid advertisements, should generally be run not less than once each week for two consecutive
weeks. State or local law may impose additional advertising requirements (HUD Handbook '7460.8,
Rev.2).

RFP Bonds/@uaran;ee Non-construction projects should generally not require bid bonds RCHC may
requure bonding/guarantees in circumstances when deemed appropriate (HACR Procurement Pohcy)

'REP Amendment. RCHC may amend RFPs when necessary or when otherwise cons:dered to be in the -
best interest of the corporation. :
1. - If changes to the RFP are needed after it has been issued but before proposais are due RCHC
. should issue a written amendment to all potential offerors who were furnished a copy of the
original solicitation. The amendment should then be provided with the original RFP to those who
request the RFP after the amendment is made.
2. -If changes to the RFP- are needed after the due date for receipt of proposals, RCHC should
provide a written amendment to all offerors who submitted a proposal. If, however, the changes
are significant enough that potential offerors who did not submit offers might have if the changes
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had been made before the proposal due date, RCHC should consnder extendlng the pmposal L B

- due date. v

3. If the need for changes is discovered after RCHC has determined the competitive range
(discussed below), RCHC should provide the amendment to all offerors determined to be within
the competitive range. If the changes may have had an impact on the acceptability of any offeror
who was not included in the competitive range, RCHC should consider re-determining the range =
to include such offerors and provide them with the amendment. .

4. If at any time in the process any needed changes are substantial enough to constttute an.
-essentlally new requirement, RCHC should cancel the RFP, make the needed changes, and
issue a new RFP with a new proposal due date. This will be a judgment call on the part of the
Contractlng Officer (HUD Handbook 7460 8, Rev. 2). :

RFEP Camgllayg RCHC may cancel RFPs when necessary or when otherwise consudered to bei m the
best interest of the corporation (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

An RFP may be canceled before offers are due if:
1. The supplies, services or construction is no longer required;
2. "The funds are no longer available;
3. - Proposed amendments to the solicitation are of such magnitude that a new sohmtaﬁon would be
. best;or v
4. Other similar reasons (HUD Handbook 7480.8, Rev. 2).

A solicitation may be canceled and all proposals that have already been received may be re;ected if:
The supplies or services (including construction) are no longer required;

Ambiguous or otherwise inadequate specifications were part of the solicitation;

Al factors of significance to RCHC were not considered:;

Prices exceed available funds and it would not be appropriate to adjust quantltles to oome wrthm
‘available funds; '

There is reason to believe that proposals may not have been mdependently determined m open :
competition, may have been collusive, or may have been submitted in bad faith; or

For good cause of a similar nature when it is in the best interest of RCHC (HUD -Handbook
7460.8, Rev. 2).

I N

Cancellations must be:done in accordance with RCHC'’s written procurement policy and: procedures
Procurement staff shall document the procurement file with the reasons and supporting facts for °
cancehng the IFB (HUD Handbook 7460. 8, Rev. 2). :

A notlce of cancellation shall be sent to all bidders/offerors solicited and, if approprlate shal! explam
that they will be given an opportunity to compete on any re-solicitation or future procumment of similar
items (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

BEE_S_L_IQr_nﬁs_gQ_n_ Proposats are to be date and time stamped when. they are received and held
unopened in a secure place until the established date for receipt of proposals has passed. Since
proposals are submitted in confidence and may contain proprietary information (such as trade secrets
or other confidential business information regarding the offeror's approach to the work), they are not
opened publicly. After the closing date, all proposals received are opened and evaluated. Proposals
and any changes to those proposals are shown only to RCHC personnel who have been authorized by
the Contracting Officer as having a legitimate interest in them on the condition that information in the

proposals will not be released to anyone who has not been so authorized (HUD Handbook 7460 8 Rev L
2).
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Any offer recelved at the designated place after the specmed time should not be COﬂSId&Fed unless 1t is
the only proposal received (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

No lnformatlon regardlng any of the proposals, including the names of the offerors or the number of
proposals received, should be provided to anyone without the Contracting Officer's permission. Each
member of the evaluation committee and any advisors to the evaluation committee should be required -
to sign a certification of nondisclosure. A sample certification of nondisclosure is provided in Appendix
9 of the HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2 (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

RFP Evaluation Proces_ Evaluation of RFP submissions shall be based on the evaluatlon famors set
forth in the RFP. Factors not specified in the RFP shall not be considered (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev.
2). RFPs shall generally be evaluated by an appropriately appomted Evaluation Commrtlee (HACR
Procurement Policy).

Initially, proposals should be evaluated on an individual basis against the requnrements stated in the
RFP; at this point proposals are not analyzed in comparison with each other. Also during the initial
evaluation, the committee evaluates only the content of the proposals. No. personal knowiedge of the
offeror not based on the contractor’s written submission is or should be part of the written proposals’
initial evaluation; however, the contractor's prior performance with RCHC should be mcluded as part of
the standard review of offeror responsibility (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

The results of proposal evaluation may or may not be disclosed either before or after the contract is
awarded. Disclosure will depend on state or local law (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). Proposals shall
be handled so as to prevent disclosure of the number of offerors, identity of the offerors,;-and the
contents of their proposals until after award (HACR Procurement Policy). However, evaluators should
be especially careful to make the evaluations as thorough, objective, and well documented (e.g., citing
the specific areas of the proposal that led to the particular portion of the evaluation) as possible.
Procurement staff is responsible for ensuring that the evaluation results are sufficiently documented
and included in the contract file. To be safe, procurement staff should always assume that an award
will be protested (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Procurement staff must be alert to attempts by offerors to change the requirements of an RFP by
inserting conditions in their offers or otherwise altering the contract’'s requirements. While: proposals are
not required to be “responsive,” as that term is used in sealed bidding, offerors may not lmpose
conditions or change requirements to suit their own needs or deSIres (HUD Handbook 7460 8 Rev 2).

When possible, procurement staff should be willing to negotiate changes unless the changes wolate- o

federal, state or local law or regulation, are required by HUD policy, or prejudice the other offerors (e.g.,
maklng a change that benefits a smgle offeror) (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

RCHC shall prepare an evaluation report to document the ranking of the proposals by technical ment
using point:scores, or similar methodology. If price is included in the point scoring, the evaluation report
will also-include the price or cost analysis, as appropriate. In addition; a narrative should accompany
the scores to explain how the scores were derived, detailing the significant strengths, weaknesses, and
deficiencies in the proposal. The level of detail for the evaluation report will be ‘influenced by the

complexity of the procurement, with more complex procurements likely requiring more detailed reports
(HUD Handbook 7460 8, Rev. 2).

e. After the evaluation committee has evaluated all proposals RCHC should
determine a competmve range. The competitive range includes the proposals that have a reasonable
chance of bemg selected for award considering their technical evaluatlon results and theu' pmposed
costs or pnces (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).
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‘RCHC examines the evaluation results contained in the evaluation report to decide if each offer is
technically acceptable (i.e., appears to be able to perform the technical requirements of the contract).
- RCHC analyzes the proposed cost or pricing information to decide if the offers propose a reasonable - -
. total cost or price. RCHC then considers the combination of technical and cost presented by each’

proposal to decide if it should be kept in the running for negotiations and. possrble award (HUD :
'Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2) :

: Technlcal proposals lncluded in the competitive range should be ciassrfred as one of the: foltowrng

1. “Acceptable.” This means that based upon the proposal as submitted; RCHC could contract with
the offeror and expect that the work would be completed. The proposal is not perfect, but rt .
contains no significant weaknesses. :

2. “Potentially acceptable.” This means that the techmcal part  of the proposal contains
weaknesses that keep it from being acceptable, but with relatively minor changes or-additional -
information from the offeror, it might be made acceptable. Once additional ‘information is
obtained via initial negotiations, this type of proposal must become either acceptable or
unacceptable. ‘

3. “Unacceptable.” This means that the proposal is seriously flawed to the point that no amount of
negotiation would lead to improve it, or the offer would have to be substantially rewritten to be
found acceptable. Either the offeror simply did not understand RCHC's requirement or did not

elect to prepare a sufficient proposal. Technically unacceptable proposals should never be

included in a competitive range (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

The competitive range, including the rationale for it, must be documented in the contract ﬁte (HUD - ‘
Handbook 7460 8, Rev.2). :

-The Contractmg Officer may re-determlne the competitive range after the initial round of negotratlons -
For example, a potentially acceptable offer becomes unacceptable. In that case, procurement staff -
should not ask the offeror for a best and final offer. Instead, the Contracting :
Officer should re-determine the range and remove that proposal. This may be done after successwe
rounds of negotiation, if more than one is used (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). .

- REP Nggotratrog_s_ If, after the initial evaluation of proposals there is a clear winner, and there is no
- need to negotiate or obtain further clarification or information from that offeror (e.g., the price is
~reasonable), RCHC may proceed directly to award, provided that the RFP clearly stated that award :
could be made without negotiations (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev 2). '

- In some instances a “potentralty acceptable” offer may have been included in the competitive range.
Answers or clarification relative to the areas of the proposal that made it potentially acceptable must be
obtained. Negotiations are exchanges between RCHC and offerors that are undertaken with the intent

of allowing the offeror to revise its proposal. These negotiations may include bargaining (HUD:

Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). Offerors shall be treated fairly and equally with respect to any opportunity
for negotiation and revision of their proposals (HACR Procurement Policy).

Negotiations take place after establishment of the competitive range and are called discussions.
Discussions are tailored to each offeror's proposal, and shall be conducted with each offeror wrthm the
competitive range (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

The primary objective of discussions is to maximize RCHC'’s ability to obtain best value; based on the‘
requirements and the evaluation factors set forth in the solicitation. RCHC shall indicate to, or discuss
with, each offeror still being considered for award, significant weaknesses, ‘deficiencies, and other
aspects of |ts proposal (such as cost, pnce technical approach, past performance and terms and
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condrtrons) that could, in RCHC's opinion, be altered or explained to enhance materrally the proposer s
potential for award (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). -

The scope and extent of discussions are a matter of RCHC’s judgment. The Contracting Officer may

inform.an offeror that its price is considered by RCHC to be too high, or too low, and reveal the resuits

of the analysis supporting that conclusion. It is also permissible to indicate to all offerors the cost or -

price that RCHC'’s price analysis, market research, and other reviews have rdentrﬁed as reascmable ,
- (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

No -offeror shall be given any information about any other offeror’s proposal, and no offeror shall be

‘assisted in bringing its proposal up to the level of any other proposal (HACR Procurement Pohcy)

- “Auctioning” (revealing one offeror’s price in an attempt to get another offeror to lower their- pnce) is
- prohibited (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

RFEP_Best and Final Offers. After initial negotiations are complete, RCHC shall invite the offerorginthe
competitive range to submit their best and final offers, making any changes they wish in their technical
proposal and the price. All offerors in the competitive range should be provided an opportunity to present :
best and final offers (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

The best and fi nal offers shafl be evaluated in essentially the same manner as the initial offers. At hrsfher .
discretion, the Contracting Officer may have the entire evaluation committee or only a subset of the
commiittee evaluate the best and final offers. In either case, RCHC shall ensure that a full evaluation is-
conducted suffucrent to support the award decision (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev 2).

Best and final offers are usually requested only once in a competrtron. However, in exceptional -
circumstances, the Contracting Officer may determine that it is in RCHC'’s best interest to conduct
another round of negotiations and request a second best and final offer. The Contractmg Officer may
also re-determine the competitive range based upon the best and final offers. In that case, only those
offerors still in the competitive range are asked to submit another revised best and final offer. RCHC
should document in the contract file the rationate for re-opening negotiations and requestrng any
-addrtlonal best and final offers (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). '

RCHC shall establish a common date and time for submission of offers. Late responses should be
treated the same as late initial offers. When requesting best and final offers, procurement staff shall
clearly inform offerors that should they fail to submit a best and final offer, or fail to submit one by the
due date their initial offer will be deemed to be their best and final offer (HUD Handbook 7460. 8, Rev
2)

REP Contract Award. The contract shall be awarded to the responsible firm whose technical appmach' ;
to the project, qualifications, price and/or any other factors considered, are most advantageous to RCHC
provided that the price is within the maximum total project budget (HACR Procurement Policy).
Cantracts shall be awarded only in accordance with the terms of the solicitation. Awards shall be made
only to offerors who have been determrned to be responsible contractors as defi ned below (HUD
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

RCHC should notify each unsuccessful offeror and the awardee in wntrng In accordance wrth any
applicable state or local law, the notice should identify the successful offeror, the contract price and the
basis for the offeror not being selected for contract award. The basis should clearly describe the offer's
salient weaknesses and deﬁcrenmes that resulted in it not being consrdered for award (HUD Handbcok, 2
~7460.8, Rev. 2) ’
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The notice to unsuccessful offerors should also provide them with the opportunity to request a debneﬁng
by procurement staff. The notice should state any time frame during which the request must be made
(e.g., within 10 business days after receipt of notice). The debriefing should explain how the offer was

- unsuccessful (e.g., by comparing it to the requirements of the RFP). The debriefing should not include
a detailed point-by-point comparison with the successful offer or any other offer, and may not reveal -
any information. about another offer that is protected from disclosure (e.g., personal |nformat|on
propnetary business information, etc.) (HUD Handbook 7460 8, Rev. 2). ,

Request er Qualifications (RFQ). The qualifications-based selection method is conducted usmg an
RFQ. With the RFQ, RCHC first selects the highest-ranked respondent on technical factors and then

negotiates price. Price is not used as an evaluation factor. The most common use of RFQsis for -

- architect/engineer (A/E) contracts. RFQs can also be used to select development partners fer mlxed
financed proyects (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

RCHC requests technical qualifications statements from prospective firms and then ranks the
~ statements according to their qualifications as related to the project. RCHC then opens negotiations

~ with the top-ranked firm with intentions to reach agreement on a fair and reasonable price. If agreement
cannot be reached, RCHC terminates negotiations with this firm and proceeds to the next-highest rated
firm until a price determined to be fair and reasonable to both parties is obtained. Once negotiations
have been terminated with a firm, RCHC may not go back to that firm for additional negotiations - even
if the next Iower ranked respondent is hlgher in price (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

RFQ Eligjble Uses. The RFQ method can only be used for AE services, or developer related contracts,
or when specifically authorized by HUD. Further, the RFQ method cannot be used to contract for other -
types of services provided by A/E firms, even though A/E firms are a potential source for performing the

- proposed effort. (Details regarding alternatives for contracting for the full range of services offered by -
A/E firms are provided in HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2) (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

REQ Solicitation. Solicitations' must be done publicly. While any of the followmg methods of solicitation
can be employed, RCHC should choose the method, which, considering matters of economy prowdes
for full and open competition. . '

1. Advertising in newspapers or other print mediums of local or general circulations.
- 2. Advertising in various trade journals or publications (for construction). ' '
3.~ Through the internet using e-procurement systems. However, all e—procurements must
otherwise be in compliance with 24 CFR 85.36, state and local requirements, and RCHC's own
procurement policy. Steps must be taken to meet the requirements for full and open competltmn
to avoid potential protests (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Notices/advertisements should state, at a minimum, the place date, and time that the bids are due the
solicitation number, a contact who can provide a copy of, and information about, the solicitation; and a
brief description of the needed items(s). A minimum of 15 days shall generally be provided for
preparation and submission of competitive proposals (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

The solicitation must be run for a period sufficient to achieve effective competition, which, in the case -
of paid advertisements, should generally be run not less than once each week for two consecutive

weeks. State or Iocal law may impose additional advertising requnrements (HUD Handbook 7460 8,
Rev 2) _

RFQ Bonds/Guarantees. Non-construchon projects should generally not require bid bonds. RCHC may
require bonding/guarantees in circumstances when deemed appropriate (HACR Procurement Pollcy)
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FQ Amendment. RCHC may amend RFQs when necessary or when otherwise consrdered to be in
the best interest of the corporation. ,
1. If changes to the RFQ are needed after it has been issued but before proposals are due, RCHC -

- should issue a written amendment to all potential offerors who were furnished a copy of the

Procurement Policy

original solicitation. The amendment should then be provided with the onglnal RFQ to these who -

request the RFQ after the amendment is made.

2. If changes to the RFQ are needed after the due date for recelpt of proposals, RCHC should

- provide a written amendment to all offerors who submitted a proposal. If, however, the changes
are significant enough that potential offerors who did not submit offers might have if the changes
had been made before the proposal due date, RCHC should consider extending the proposal
due date.

3. If at any time in the process any needed changes are substantial enough to constitute an-
essentlally new requirement, RCHC should cancel the RFP, make the needed changes, and
issue a new RFQ with a new proposal due date. This is a judgment call on the part of the
Contracting Officer (HUD’ Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

_Mm ‘RCHC may cancel RFQs when necessary or when otherwise considered. to bein
the best mterest of the corporation (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2) '

An RFQ may be canceled before offers are due if:
1. The supplies, services or-construction is no longer required;
2. The funds are no longer available; ' )
3. Proposed amendments to the solicitation are of such magnitude that a new sollcrtatron would be
best; or ' :
4. Other similar reasons (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

A solrcrtatlon may be canceled and all proposals that have already been received may be re;ected If
The supplies or services (including construction) are no longer required;

' Ambrguous or otherwise inadequate specifications were part of the sohcltatron

- All factors of significance to RCHC were not considered:;
Prices exceed available funds and it would not be appropriate to adjust quantities to come within
available funds; -
There is reason to believe that proposals may not have been mdependently determmed in open,
competition, may have been collusive, or may have been submitted in bad faith; or
For good cause of a similar nature when it is in the best interest of RCHC (HUD Handbook
7460.8, Rev. 2).

AwN

o o

Cancellations must be done in accordance with. RCHC's written procurement pollcy and: procedures.
Procurement staff shall document the procurement file with the reasons and supportlng facts for
cancehng the IFB (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). : : '

A notrce of cancellation shall be sent to all bldders/offerors solrcnted and, if appropnate shalt explain

that they will be given an opportunity to compete on any re-solicitation or future procurement of srmrlar
items (HUD Handbook 7460 8, Rev. 2). :

. RFQ Evaluatlgn Factors. The followmg evaluation factors may be used for modernization and'
development A/E contracts:

1. Evidence of the A/E’s or firm’s ability to-perform the work as indicated by profiles of the princrpals
and staffs’ professional and technical competence/experience, and their facmtle& ,
2. Capability to provrde professronai services in a timely manner.
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3. If design work is involved, evidence that the A/E is currently registered in California and carries
- Errors and Omissions insurance. (Note that this is a yes or no criterion: if the answer is no, the
firm is disqualified, not point-scored).
4. -Past performance in terms of cost control, quality of work, and compliance WIth perfarmance
schedules. -
5. Demonstrated knowledge of local building codes and federal building alterations requirements.
6. Other factors determined to be appropriate by RCHC (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

“RFQ Forms for AE: gqntrgcts The form HUD-51915, Model Form of Agreement

Between Owner and Design Professional, is required for use by RCHC for A/E contracts that exceed : '

vthe small purchase threshold (HUD Handbook 7480.8, Rev. 2).

S Q Inadeguate Response to Solicitation. If fewer than three proposals ‘are received, RCHC shou!d’- '

~analyze and document the reasons for the inadequate response. Depending on the results of the

‘analysis, .RCHC may either reject the proposals and issue a revised solicitation, or evaluate the

- proposals as deemed appropriate. If only one responsive proposal was received, dotumentation is:
- required by RCHC to demonstrate price reasonableness, including any cost analyses (HUD. Handbook :
‘ 7460 8, Rev. 2). v

Cost Analysis. The presence of adequate competition should generally be sufficient to estabhsh price:

reasonableness. Where sufficient proposals are not received, RCHC must compare the. price with the -
ICE. For competitive proposals where prices cannot be easily compared among offerors, where there
is not adequate  competition, or where the price is substantially greater than the ICE, RCHC must

conduct a cost analysis, consistent with federal gwdelmes to ensure. that the price paid is reasonab!e

(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

RCHC shall negotiate profit as a separate element of the price for each contract in which there is no
~ price competition and in all cases where cost analysis is performed. To establish a fair and reasonable
- profit, consideration will be given to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the
contractor, the contractor's investment, the amount of subcontractlng, the quality of its record of past.
performance, and mdustry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work (24 CFR
§85.36). - S

In all cases, proposed costs must be allowable’ pursuant to appllcable cost pnncuptes allocable (relatedf ’
to or required in the performance of the contract) and reasonable (what a prudent busmess would pay
in ‘a competitive marketplace) (HUD Handbook 7480.8, Rev. 2). »

- Public Housing Projects: Noncompetitive Proposal Procedures '
_Procurement by noncompetitive proposals is procurement through solicitation of a proposal from only
one source, or after solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate. For -
projects involving public housing or public housing funds, procurement by noncompetitive proposals
may be used only when the award of a contract is infeasible under small purchase procedures, sealed

“bids or competitive proposals and one of the following circumstances applies:
1. The item is available only from a single source;
2. The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permlt adelay resumng - from
. competitive solicitation; ’
3. The awarding agency authorlzes noncompetitive proposals; or
4. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate (24 CFR §85 36
and HACR Procurement Policy).:

For the purposes of this section, an emergency is defined as a situation that ser:ously threatens the
public health, weifare, or safety, or endangers property, or would otherwise cause serious lnjury tothe
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. corporation, as may arise by reason of a flood, earthquake, epidemic, riot, equipment failure, or similar
event. In such cases, there must be an immediate and serious need for supplies, services, construction,
or contractual services that the need cannot be met through any other procurement method. The
emergency procurement shall be limited to those supplies, services, construction, or contractual -

. services necessary to meet the emergency. Goods and services must be provided immediately by the

vendors in order to constitute an emergency situation (HACR Procurement Procedures).

Process. Award of contracts from noncompetitive proposals follows a process similar to that used for

‘competitive proposals. The proposal must be evaluated. Technical and cost aspects of the proposal
may be negotiated. The offeror must be determined to be responsible at the tlme of award (HUD
‘Handbook 7460. 8 Rev. 2). :

HUD Approval. Proposed noncompetrtlve contracts must be submitted to- HUD for pre-award review -
and approval unless RCHC is exempted from doing so under 24 CFR §85 36 (9)(3) (HUD Handbook »
7460 8, Rev 2). ,

Qgg; Analysis. Cost analysis, e.g., verifying the proposed cost data the prOJectlons of the data -and the
evaluation of the specific elements of costs and profits, is required. Costs or pnce must be determlned
to be reasonable (24 CFR §85 36 and HACR Procurement Policy). :

RCHC shall. negotlate profit as a separate element of the price in all cases where cost: analysns is:
performed. To establish a fair and reasonable profit, consideration will be given to the complexity of the
work to be performed, the risk borne by the contractor, the contractor's investment, the amount of
subcontracting, the quality of its record of past performance, and industry profit rates in the surroundmg
geographical area for similar work (24 CFR §85.36). :

In all cases, proposed costs must be allowable pursuant to apphcable cost principles, altocable (felated
to or required in the performance of the contract) and reasonable (what a prudent business would pay
in a competitive marketplace) (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

gustn“ cahgn/rogmentahon Procurement by noncompetltlve proposals shall be conducted only if a
‘written justification is made as to the necessity of using this method in accordance with the procedures
- described in RCHC'’s procurement policy. Approval to award a contract resulting from a noncompetitive
proposal does not eliminate or alter any other requirements of 24 CFR 85.36 governmg the contract
The justlﬁcatlon should include the following information: ~
Description of the requirement;
History of prior purchases and their nature (competitive vs. noncompetitive);
- The specific exception in 24 CFR 85.36(d)(4)(i)(A) through (D) which applies;
Statement as to the unique circumstances that require award by noncompetitive proposals :
Description of the efforts made to find competitive sources, e.g., advertisement in trade journals -
‘or local publications, phone calls to local suppliers, issuance of a written solicitation, etc.;
Statement as to efforts that will be taken in the future to promote competition for the reqmrement
and,
7. Signature of the Contracting Officer (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). '
8. The reasonableness of the price for all procurements based on noncompetitive proposats shall
be determined by performmg an analysis, as described in this pohcy (HACR Procurement
Policy).

OhON =2

o

- The written justification-and approval shall be maintained in the contract ﬁle (HUD Handbook '7460.8,
“Rev. 2). ‘

- Public Housing Projects: Solicitation Requirements
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For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC shall ensure that all solicitations:
1. Incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the material, -
-~ product, or service to be procured. Such description shall not, in competitive procurements,
contain features which unduly restrict competition. The description may include a statement of :
the qualitative nature of the material, product or service to be procured, and when necessary, -
shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to which it must conform
©if it is to satisfy its intended use. Detailed product specifications should be avoided if at all
- possible (24 CFR §85.36). When it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate
description of the technical requirements, a brand name or equivalent (2 CFR §§200.317—-
200.326) description may be used as a means to define the performance or other salient
requirements of a procurement. The specific features of the named brand which must be met by
- offerors shall be clearly stated; and
2. Identify all requirements which the offerors must fulfill and all ‘other factors to be used in
evaluating bids or proposals (24 CFR §85.36). '
3. Comply with the standards set forth if forms HUD- 5369, 5369-A and 5369-B, as appltcable
- (HACR Procurement Policy). :
4. Include the thirteen (13) clauses contained in 24 CFR 85.36(i). As some of these clauses may
directly affect negotiations with partners, these clauses must be included in the solicitation
- documents (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). ‘

Public Housmg Projects: Procurement of Legal Services

RCHC may employ an attorney directly (house counsel), or it may. enter mto a procurement contract
with an attorney or firm. For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC shall obtain
outside legal services through procurement contracts subject to the requirements set forth in 24 CFR
§85. The costs of legal services incurred under federal grants (including those obtained under contract)
must be reasonable and necessary. Contracts for litigation services are also to meet the requirements
of the HUD Litigation Handbook 1530.1 REV-5 dated May 2004 (the “Litigation Handbook") (HUD
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

‘RCHC may choose the method of procurement that is reasonable based on the facts surroundmg the
particular situation. The competitive proposal method is generally preferred as it allows for the
consideration of technical quality or other factors. Noncompetitive proposals may only be used when

~ the other methods of procurement are infeasible and the circumstances described in 24  CFR
85.36(d)(4) are applicable (e.g., legal services are available from only a single source; public exigency
or emergency for the requirements will not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation; after
solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate; or HUD authorizes the use
of noncompetitive proposals.) The sealed bid method is normally not appropriate. Legal services can
be procured on an hourly basis using time-and-materials (or “labor-hour”) contracts. RCHC may use
this type of contract only after it determines that no other contract is suitable and if the contract includes
a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Public Housing PrOJects Procurement of Development Partners
For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC shall procure development
partners in accordance with the regulations at 24 CFR §85.36 (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2)

HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2 states that this requirement does not apply between a PHA and its
instrumentality. RCHC meets the indica of control in Section Il B of HUD Notice PIH 2007-15 necessary

to be considered an instrumentality of HACR. Therefore, RCHC's selection of HACR asa development,

partner is exempted from the procurement reqmrements of 24 CFR §85.36.

A development partner is a for-profit or nonprofit partner of RCHC or a. development affiliate of RCHC,
_carrying out the physncal revitalization of a mixed-finance pro;ect site, bearing financial risk. A

300f 46
h:\department\housing\riversid ity howsing corp (rchc)\forms 11\2018\antiial report-17-18- 12-4-2018\rche fy 201718 annual report.docx




Procuremient Policy

development partner is an entity with whom RCHC enters into a partnership or other contractual
arrangement in order to provide for mixed-finance development projects. The development partner has
primary responsibility with RCHC for the development of the housing units and/or non-residential -
structures 'under the terms of the approved mixed-finance proposal (HUD Handbook 7460.-8 ‘Rev. 2).-

RCHC is permitted to use the RFQ method of procurement to select a development partner, under-an
-exception that parallels the selection of an A/E and where price is negotiated with the highest-ranked

- offeror based on responses to the RFQ. The RFQ method is not permitted for the procurement of mixed--
finance program managers. Requirements and guidance governing the selection of a development
partner (or master developer) can be found in 24 CFR 941.602(d)( 1) of the Mixed-Finance Interim Rule
(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). .

Procurement: of development partners must be conducted in a manner that provides full and open

competition. A cost or price analysis must be completed prior to the submission of proposals to. -

determine an estimated value for the requested services (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Once the developer has been selected in accordance with 24 CFR §85.36, the selected development
partner is not subject to 24 CFR 85.36 except where RCHC (or HACR) exercises significant functions
within the owner entity with respect to managing the development of the proposed units. Actions that
are considered to be exercising significant functions are:
1. Acting as the sole or managing general partner in the owner entlty
- 2. Acting as developer (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

The following are examples of actions that are not considered significant functions:

Monitoring units receiving operating subsidy to ensure compliance with various regulatrons
Coordinating communications with agencies regarding project financing and operations.
Providing Community and Supportive Services (CSS) services.

Attending construction meetings, reviewing and approving draws.

Maintaining the waiting list. ;

Revrewrng and approving operating and capital budgets (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev 2).

OOk WON=

24 CFR 85.36 applies to the developer when a city agency is acting as a developer through a sub-~
grantee agreement with RCHC (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). ,

As private entities, developers, procured by RCHC in accordance with 24 CFR 85.36 and 941.602(d),
~_are not required to comply with 24 CFR 85.36 in selecting their subcontractors (see also paragraph
- 16.7.B.2 and 24 CFR 941.606(n)(1)(ii)) (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Public Housing Projects: Procurement of Joint Venture Partners L
In connection with the provision of administrative or management functions of public housing, or the
provision of supportive and social services for public housing projects, RCHC may use one of the
. following options for the selection of joint venture partners: '
1. Using a RFQ, subject to the negotiation of a fair and reasonable price; or
2. The solicitation of a sole source proposal, under the following conditions: v ’

a) The proposed joint venture partner has under its control and will make available to the
partnership substantial, unique, and tangible resources or other benefits that would not
otherwise be available to RCHC on the open market (such as planning expertise, program
experience, or financial or other resources). In this case, RCHC must carefully and
thoroughly document both the cost reasonableness and the unique qualifications offered by
its proposed partner; or

b) A resident group or RCHC subsidiary is willing and able to act as the partner in performing
the administrative or management function or to provide supportive or social services, A
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resident group or RCHC subsidiary must comply with the requirements of 24 CFR Part 84

(if the entity is a nonprofit) or 24 CFR Part 85 (if it is a state or local government) in selecting

members of the team. Team members must be paid on a cost reimbursement basis only.
RCHC must document the cost reasonableness of its selection of a resident, group or
subsidiary and the group’s ability to act as a RCHC partner (HUD Handbook 7460 8, Rev.’
2).

Joint venture transactions involving public housing or public housing funds must comply with RCHC's -
conflict of interest provisions as well as those of 24 CFR 85.36 and any other grant funding sources.

' Additionally, all joint venture partners and the joint venture as a whole must comply with conflict of
interest provisions in HACR’s ACC, state and local procurement and conflict of interest requu'ements in
conducting activities to acquire supplies and services (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2) :

Public Housing Projects: Employment Contracts

‘There is a distinction between employing an individual via employment contract and contracting for
- independent services via independent service contract. The former is part of the personnel process an_d_

is subject to those rules and regulations. Employment contracts are not subject to 24 CFR 85.36 and
~_need not be competitively procured. The latter is considered to be a procurement action, subject to the

- standards in 24 CFR 85.36(d)(3). In an independent services contract there is no emp%oyerﬁmpbyee
relationship (HUD Handboak 7460, 8 Rev. 2).

An Executive Dlrector may be hired as an RCHC employee or may be retained under an independent
services contract. If the latter is chosen, HUD recommends that RCHC issue the contract for two base
years with three one-year option periods. Fees or salaries paid by RCHC shall be in. compuance W|th
the ACC'’s prov:smns for economy and efficiency (HUD Handbook 7460. 8 Rev. 2). :

Public Housmg Projects: Contractor Responsibility
For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC shall not award any contract untll
the prospective contractor, e.g., low responsive bidder or successful offeror, has been determined to
- be responsible. A responsible bidder/offeror must be determined to be fespansmle at the time of the
award and must:
1. Have adequate financial resources to perform the contract; or the ability to obtain them;
2. Have the necessary organization, experience, accountlng and operational controls, and
technical skills, -or the ability to obtain them;
3. Have the necessary production, construction, and technical equipment and facmtles or the
ability to obtain them; :
4. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery or performance schedule takmg mto
- consideration all the bidder's/offeror's existing business commitments;
Have a satisfactory performance record:
Have a satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics; and
Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award under applicable laws and regu%attons
including not being suspended, debarred or under a HUD-imposed Limited Demal of
Participation (LDP) (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

Noo

Evidence of Responsibility. It is mcumbent upon bldders/offerors to provide acceptable ewdence of their-
ability to meet these requirements. Acceptable evidence normally consists of a commitment or explicit
arrangement that will be in existence at the time of contract award to rent, purchase, or otherwise

acquire the needed facilities, equipment, fmancmg, personnel or other resources: (HUD Handbook e

7460.8, Rev. 2).

Procurement staff shall conduct research to determine that a prospective contractor is responsible. The f
size and complexnty of the contract, the degree of prior experience of RCHC with the offeror and the :
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extent to which RCHC can ‘cancel the contract and install a replacement vendor will all _influence the

extent of research required (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). Examples of these methods are provided -

in HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2.

Before a contract is awarded, RCHC shall check to determine if HUD has issued an LDP or if a
contractor has been debarred or suspended. A list of persons and contractors for which LDPs have

‘been issued may be found at www.hud.gov/enforcg. Persons or-contractors that have been suspended .

| - or debarred from federal programs are listed at http:/epls.gov (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). -

-Contracts shall not be awarded to debarred, suspended, or ineligible contractors.fcontr;actors may ybe’ :
suspended, debarred, or determined to be ineligible by HUD in accordance with HUD regulations (24
CFR Part 24) or by other federal agencies, e.g., Dept of Labor for violation of labor regulations (HACR -

Procurement Policy).

‘Prime contractors are responsible for determining that potential subcontractors. are not on any of the |

above lists. RCHC shall advise potential contractors of their responsibility to confirm in their proposals
the acceptability of their subcontractors. RCHC shall also advise ‘potential confractors of their

responsibility to provide evidence that a check has occurred on each proposed subeontractor before

- the award is made or before new subcontractors will be allowed to participate in the contract (HUD
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). o : _

Determination of Ngg—Rgmk h§ibiﬁy. With the exception of a finding that a bidder/offeror .is-suépénded, -

debarred or under a HUD LDP, a determination of non-responsibility will be a matter of judgment on the
part of RCHC, given a preponderance of evidence. If the facts indicate that the bidder/offeror fails to

meet the requirements for responsibility, RCHC shall document the findings of fact that led to the

 determination. A written determination of non-responsibility shall be included in the official contract

file.RCHC shall notify the prospective contractor, advising him/her of the reasons for the determination

(HACR Procurement Policy). :

Public Housing Projects: Contract Types and Pricing -

and contracts shall include the clauses and provisions necessary to define the rights and responsibilities
of both the contractor and RCHC (HACR Procurement Policy). Details about each contract type are
provided in HUD Handbook 7460.8 Rev. 2. ’ R ,

For all cost reimbursement;cont‘racts, RCHC must include a written determination as to why no other
contract type is suitable. Further, the contract must include a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds
-at'its own risk (HACR Procurement Policy). ‘ ' :

- RCHC shall ne'gotiafteprofit as a separate element of the price for each contract in which there is no
price competition and in all cases where cost analysis is performed. To establish a fair and reasonable

. For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, any type of contract which is appropriate
- to t‘he procurement and which will promote the best interests of RCHC may be used, provided the cost
* -plus-a-percentage-of-cost and percentage-of-construction-cost methods are not used. All solicitations:

profit, consideration will be given to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the -

contractor, the contractor's investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record of past

performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work (24 CFR

§85.36).

Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts under grants will be allowable only to the extent
that costs incurred or cost estimates included in negotiated prices are consistent with federal cost
principles (see 24 CFR §85.22). RCHC may reference its own cost principles that comply with the
applicable federal cost principles (24 CFR §85.36). In all cases, proposed costs must be allowable
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pursuant to applicable‘ cost principles, allocable (related to or required in the performance of the
contract) and reasonable (what a prudent business would pay in a competltrve marketplaoe) (HUD
.Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). :

: Opttons for addrtronal quantities or performance periods may be included in contracts subject to the
limitations referenced at 24 CFR §85.36 and 24 CFR §990, and provrded that:

VQWPwNe

~

The option is contained in the solicitation;

The option is a unilateral right of RCHC;

The contract states a limit on the additional quantities and the overall term of the contract

The options are evaluated as part of the initial competition;

The contract states the period within which the options may be exercrsed : .
The options may be exercised only at the price specrf‘ ied in or reasonably determinable from the
contract; and

The options may be exercised only if determined to be more advantageous to RCHC than
conducting a new procurement (HACR Procurement Pohcy)

Public Housing Projects Additional Contract Provisions
- Contracts related to projects involving public housing or public housing funds must contaln the following
provisions in addition to the other contract provision requirements of this manual:

1.

10.

All thirteen (13) clauses contained in 24 CFR §85.36(i). As some of these clauses may directly
affect negotiations with partners, these clauses must be mcluded in the solicitation documents .
(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

. Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state

energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (24
CFR §85.36).

Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7) as supplemented by
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5).

-Small purchases exceeding $3,000 (or $2,000 in the case of acquisitions for construction subject o
to the Davis-Bacon Act) (excluding contracts for construction or maintenance) mustincorporate:

the mandatory clauses contained in Appendix T of this manual.

~Small purchase construction contracts that are between $2,000 and $50,000 must mcorporate :

the clauses contained in form HUD-5370-EZ, General Conditions for Small
Construction/Development Contracts, and the applicable Davis-Bacon wage decision. Form
HUD-5370-EZ has been designed for small construction jobs. RCHC may use form HUD- 5370 :
in lieu of the HUD-5370-EZ if the former is more appropriate given the nature of the work.

Small purchase maintenance contracts between $3,000 (or $2,000 in the case of acquisitions
for construction subject to the Davis-Bacon Act) and $50,000 must incorporate the clauses

- contained in Appendix T; Section 1l of form HUD-5370-C, General Conditions for Non-

Construction Contracts; and the applicable HUD wage decision (HUD Handbook 7460:8, Rev.
2).

Contracts greater than $50 000 must include the clauses and certifi catlons set forth in form HUD-
51915-A.

Constructron/development contracts greater than $50,000 must incorporate the clauses
contained in form HUD-5370, General Conditions of the Contract for Constructlon and the -

applicable Davis-Bacon wage decision.

Non-construction contracts (without maintenance work) greater than $50,000 must mcorporate
the clauses contained in Section | of form HUD-5370-C, General Conditions for Non-
Construction Contracts. :
Maintenance Contracts (mcludlng non-routine maintenance work) greater, than $50,000 must -
incorporate the clauses contained in Sections | and Il of form HUD-5370-C, General Conditions

for Non-Construction Contracts (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev 2 and HACR Procurement
Pollcy)
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Section 3 covered contracts must include mandatory contract clauses at 24 CFR §135.38.
Covered contracts described at 24 CFR §135.3(a) include developments, operating and
modernization assistance. This clause is included in forms HUD-5370, HUD- 5370-C, and HUD- -

~ 5370-EZ (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

13.

. RCHC shall assure in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf

of RCHC that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard

“to race, color, creed, religion, sex; handicap or national origin. RCHC must incorporate the

foregoing requirements of this paragraph in all of its contracts for project work, ‘except contracts
for standard commercial supplies or raw materials, and must require all of its contractors for
such work to incorporate such requirements in all subcontracts for project work (HUD Gurde to
ACC Contract Administration).

RCHC shall require contractors to provide evidence of insurance carried wath companies which

are financially responsible and admitted to do business in the state of California. All certificates - .

of insurance, as evidence of coverage, shall provide that no coverage may be canceled or non-

- renewed by the insurance company until at least 30 days prior written notice has been gwen to )

RCHC . Insurance coverage shall include:

@) Automobile Liability on owned and non -owned motor vehicles used on the snte(s) or.in-. .

connection therewith for a combined smgle limit for bodily injury and property damage of not

less than $1,000,000; - ,
b) Commercial General Liability with a combined single limit for bodily mjury and property

damage of not less than $1,000,000.00; '

: c) Public Liability and Automobile, Property in the amount of $1,000,000;

d) Worker's Compensation Insurance; and
e) When required, Builder's RISk Insurance (HACR Procurement Policy).

Contracts must not

1.

Require or prohibit bidders, offerors contractors, or subcontractors to enter into or adhere to
agreements with one or more labor organizations on the same or other related federally funded

- construction project; or

Otherwise discriminate against bidders, offerors, contractors, or subcontractors for becommg or
refusing to become or remain signatories, or otherwise adhere to agreements with one or more
labor organizations, on the same or other related federalty funded construction project (HUD

‘Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

- RCHC may utilize any one or any combination of the:following methods to incorporate mandatory"
clauses and applicable wage decisions into bid specifications and contracts. RCHC may:

1.
2.

Attach the language in Appendix T and/or wage decisions, as printed; o
Incorporate the clauses/text of the applicable HUD form and 'wage decision into other documents

(e.g., into RCHC'’s own forms) that are boun’d/attached to-the contract (and bid specn"lcattons if

applicable) or incorporated by reference.

Incorporate the clauses or HUD forms and/or any applncable Davis-Bacon or HUD wage decrsron s

by reference. The reference must be specific as to the exact clauses or form(s) that are:
incorporated, and where the clauses or forms(s) may be accessed or obtained (e.g., HUD Clips).
A Davis-Bacon wage decision may be incorporated by reference to www.wdol.gov and to the
specific number, modification number, and date of the wage decision. HUD maintenance wage
decisions are not available at HUD’s web site; however, RCHC may post any applicable HUD"
wage decision to its own web site and reference that site. RCHC must provide hard-copies of
any referenced clauses, forms, and/or wage decisions on request (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev.

2

Public Housing Pro;ects' Awarding of a Contract
For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC shall make awards only to
- responsible contractors possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions
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of a proposed procurement (24 CFR §85.36). Details about contracting respons:blhty are provrded in
sub-section “Public Housing Projects: Contractor Responsibility”.

- Public Housing Projects: Small, Minority, Woman-Owned and Labor Surplus Area Firms :
For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC will take all necessary affirmative
steps to assure that minority firms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used
when possnbte (24 CFR §85 36). :

Affirmative steps shall include: ‘ ‘
1. Placing qualified small and minority businesses -and women's busmess enterpnses on -

; solicitation lists;

2. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterpnses are sohcttedv .
whenever they are potential sources; ’

3. Dividing total requirements, when economically fea3|ble into smaller tasks or quantmes to .

- . permit. maximum participation by small and minority busmess and women's business -

enterprises;

4, Establishing ' delivery. schedules, where the requurement permits, WhICh encourage
participation by small and minority business, and women's business enterprises; ;

5. Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration, and the Mmonty ,

Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and
6. Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the afﬁrmatwe steps
listed in |tems N - (5) of this paragraph (24 CFR §85.36).

Following are related definitions:
1. A small business is defined as a business that is: independently owned; not dommant in its field:
. -of operation; and not an affiliate or subsidiary of a business dominant in its field of operation.

The size standards in 13 CFR §121 should be used to determine business size. ’

2. A minority-owned business is defined as a business which is at least 51% owned by one or more
“minority group members; or, in the case of a publicly-owned business, one in which at least 51%
of its voting stock is owned by one or more minority group members, and whose management
and daily business operations are controlied by one or more such individuals. -Minority group
members  include, but are not limited to Black Americans, Hispanic Americans, Native
Americans, Asian Pacific Americans, Asian Indian Americans, and Hasidic Jewish Americans.

3. Awomen’s business enterprise is defined as a business that is at least 51% owned by a woman_
or women who are U.S. citizens and who control and operate the business.

4. A labor surplus area business is defined as a business which, together with-its- |mmed|ate_ :

subcontractors, will incur more than 50% of the cost of performing the contract in an area of

concentrated unemployment or underemployment, as defined by the DOL in 20 CFR §654,
Subpart A, and in the list of labor surplus areas published by the Employment and Tramlng :
Admmlstratlon (HUD Handbcok 7460.8, Rev. 2).

For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC shall additionally adh_ere' to Section
3 requirements set forth at 24 CFR §135. Covered contracts described at 24 CFR §135.3(a) include
developments, operating and modernization assistance. Section 3 covers contracts for work and does
not applyto contracts for the purchase of supplies and materials (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Public Housing Projects: Equal Opportunity

For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC shall comply with all statutory,
regulatory and executive order requirements pertaining to civil rights, equal opportunity and
nondiscrimination, as those requirements now exist or as they may be enacted, ‘promuigated or
amended from time to time. These reqmrements include, but are not limited to: :
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1. The Fair Housing Act 42 U.S.C. §§3601-3619 (|mp|ement1ng regulations are at 24 CFR'§§100°

et seq.)
2. Title VI of the Civil rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §2000 (d) (|mplementmg regulattcns are at 24
CFR §1).

3. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107 (implementing regulattcns are at

24 CFR§146).

4. Executive Order 11063, Equal Opportunity in Housing (1962), as amended; Executlva Order

12259, 46 FR §1253 (1980), as amended; and Executive Order 12892, 59 FR§ 2939 (1 904)
(implementing regulations are at 24 CFR §107).

5. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §794 (implementing regulations are at
24 CFR §8).

6. Title }l of the Americans with Dlsabmtles Act 42 U.S.C. §§12101 et seq. (ACC Fcrm HUD— S

53012A).

RCHC shall not discriminate agamst any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color :
creed, religion, sex, handicap or national origin. RCHC shall take affirmative action to ensure that

- applicants and employees are treated without regard to race, color, creed, religion, sex, handicap, or

national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading,

demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other
forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship (HUD Guide . to ACC
Contract Administration).

RCHC shall postin conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices
- to be provided by HUD setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. RCHC shall assure
in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of RCHC that all qualified

applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color; creed, religion, sex,

handicap or national origin. RCHC must incorporate the foregoing requirements of this paragraph in all

of its contracts for project work, except contracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials,
and must require all of its contractors for such work to incorporate such requirements in all subcontracts;

for project work (HUD Guide to ACC Contract Admmlstratlon)

Public Housing Projects: Protests

In accordance with sound business judgment, RCHC is responsnble for the settlement of protests arising. -
from the procurement process. RCHC shall have written procedures for handling and resotvmg protests

against their contract awards (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Protestors shall be requnred to submit protests in writing, clearly stating the basis for their protest (HUD
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). Any protest against a solicitation must be received before the due date for

the receipt of bids or proposals, and any protest against the award of a contract must be received within
ten (10) calendar days after the contract receives notice of the contract-award, or the protest wm not be
considered (HACR Procurement Pollcy)

The Contractmg Ofﬁcer or designee, shall be responsible for receipt of protests and may, at his/her

discretion, request a conference on the claim and/or suspend the procurement pending resolution of

the protest if the facts presented so warrant. The Contracting Officer shall render a decision which shall
include notice to the contractor of its appeal rights to the next higher level of authority at RCHC (HACR
Procurement Policy). The COO, or designee, shall hear any appeals of the initial protest decision.

RCHC shall fully document the protest and the protest decision in the contract file (HUD Handbook
7460.8, Rev. 2).
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For projects involving public housing or public houslng funds, contractor claims shatl be govemed by.
the Changes clause in form HUD-5370 (HACR Procurement Policy).

Public Housing Projects: Contract Administration v
Administration refers to all the actions taken regarding a contract after award to ensure that it is
successfully performed and that RCHC receives. the required supplies or services (HUD ‘Handbook

7460.8, Rev. 2).

~For projects involving public housing or publlc housmg funds, RCHC shall have a contract admtmstration

system which ensures that contractors perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and :
specifications. of their contracts or purchase orders (24 CFR §85.36). These systems shall provide for -

. inspection of supplies, services, or construction, as well as. monitoring contractor performance, status

reporting on major pro;ects including construction contracts and similar matters (HACR Procurement

,Pollcy)

uction Conference and the Notice to Progeed. Following the award of a constructmn cantract .

S a pre—constructron conference should be held to thoroughly discuss key construction and contract |
- administration-related issues. RCHC should issue a Notice to Proceed to the contractor. .stating the

starting and completion dates and typical contract-related information. The notice should be prepared

~ In an original with at least two copies signed by the Contracting Officer. The contractor should retain
-the original and sign, date, and return the copies. This Notice may be hand-delivered to the contractor

at the conference and signed immediately. RCHC should retain one copy for the official contract file
and, if requested, send the other copy to HUD (HUD Handbook 7460. 8 Rev. 2).

- For re|at:vely complex non-constructron projects, it is adwsable to meet with the contractor soan after

contract award to.ensure that all parties understand the contract's performance requirements. Terms of
the contract should be thoroughly discussed. Formal minutes of the meeting should be recorded. and
subsequently issued to all meeting attendees (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). '

_gg&sg_M_egmgg RCHC should meet with its architect and the contractor on a regular basis {usually
weekly for large or complex projects) to discuss work progress, payments, any problems or deficiencies
noted during inspection visits, overdue reports, and the construction schedule. RCHC should prepare

a written record of the items discussed at each meeting and place a copy in the constructron c:ontract-" -
" file (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Inspection Reports. All progress inspections should be documented using :an appmpnate RCHC

~ inspection report form. The inspection report should include a description of the work completed and a

determination as to whether or not the work is acceptable. If payment is made on a unit price basis,
quantities must be verified. If payment is made on a time and materials basis, the report should show -
that the time charged was spent on RCHC work and that materials were charged at cost. A- copy trf the
inspection report should be included in the contract file (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

‘Deficiencies. Upon being notified of construction deﬁcrencres RCHC shall promptly notify the contractor

in writing of the deficiencies observed. This notification should also advise the contractor that failure to
make timely corrections will be an infraction of the contract and that the contractor will be held hable for-
any resulting losses or delays (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Labor Standards. RCHC is responsible for the administration and enforcement of labor standards
requirements as provrded in HUD Handbook 1344.1, REV 1, Chg1 as required by DOL regulations
appllcable to Davis-Bacon covered work (29CFR §5) (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2)
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Progress Pﬂmgg s. If progress payments are necessary, RCHC shall require the contractor to prepare
a construction progress schedule for each project immediately after issuing the Notice to Proceed.
RCHC should review the contractor’'s construction progress schedule to ensure that the scheduled
- dates and amount of work to be completed are reasonable and consistent with the contract. After RCHC -
approves the construction progress schedule, a copy shall be kept in the official contract file (HUD -
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

- The contractor shall prepare a schedule of amounts of payments immediately after execution of the .
contract using form HUD-51000; Schedule of Amounts for Contract Payments. RCHC shall review the -
schedule to determine that both the scheduled work to be completed by the specified dates and the
amount of payment for such work are reasonable (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). ’

RCHC is respansrble for making progress payments to the contractor based on the RCHC approved
schedule of amounts for contract payments. Generally, progress payments for acceptable work and
materials delivered and stored on the site are made at 30-day intervals. HUD authorization of progress
payments based on the approved payment schedule is not required (HUD Handbook 7460. 8, Rev. 2). -

- The contractor should submit a request for payment for each project on form HUD-51001, Penodrc- '
Estimate for Partial Payment. The request shall be accompanied by the contractor’s written designation
‘of a certifying Officer. In addition, the contractor should submit the following HUD forms or other-
appropriate forms, if applicable, with each periodical estimate for partial payment: form HUD-51002,
- Schedule of Change Orders; form HUD-51003, Schedule of Materials Stored; and form HUD—51004
- Summary of Materials Stored (HUD Handbook 7480.8, Rev. 2).

' Qg ays and Time Extensions. The contractor is responsible for completing the work within the timeframe' B
. established in the contract. RCHC is responsible for monitoring the contractor to ensure that work will
be completed as scheduled. RCHC may authorize justifiable time extensions without prior HUD review
‘and approval, unless RCHC is subject to prior HUD approval under a HUD established threshold that -
is less than the requested amount. The “Default” clause on the forms HUD-5370, 5370-C and 5370-EZ:
- prescribes the conditions under which a time extension may be granted. The basic principle is that
delays arising from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the
contractor may be grounds for allowing a time extension. Such time extensions should be formaltzed |n'
- a written modification to the contract (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

RCHC should mamtam a construction log to record potential causes for delays that may be used as the
basis for granting t|me extensions or for denying a request for a time extension.

In order to be considered for approval by RCHC, requests for time extensions should meet the followmg
criteria:

1. The contractor should submlt a written notice to RCHC within 10 calendar days of the start of
any delay;

2. The severity and extent of adverse weather could not have been reasonably foreseen by the
contractor (normal seasonal levels of rain, snow, cold or heat should have been considered by
the contractor); and 4 _

3. The cause of the delay was beyond the contractor’s control (HUD: Handbook -7460 8, Rev. 2).

Immediately upon receipt of the contractor’s notification of delay or request for time extensnon RCHC
should send a letter of acknowledgment to the contractor. The letter should indicate that either: @)
immediate consideration will be given to the contractor's request or (2) the actual delay in work is difficult
to determine and consideration will be given to the contractor’s request upon completion of work (HUD
Handbook 7460.8, Rev 2).
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Qomgletlgn of Work. The completnon of a construction contract requires some formal. procedures
including the following:
1. The contractor should provide prompt written notification to RCHC when all work is completed
o A final inspection of completed work shall then be conducted. Until the final inspection has been
carried out and corrections made, RCHC should not advance any of the retainage or make the
final payment to the contractor. '
2. Upon receipt of the contractor’'s notification of the date when the work has been- compteted '
RCHC should conduct a final inspection within 10 calendar days. o
3. Foliowing final ‘inspection, RCHC should notify the contractor to submit the fcﬂewing
documentation to RCHC:
a) A certificate of occupancy issued by the responsible local agency for each building (where
appropriate);
b)  One notarized original and two copies of the contractor's release, mctudmg certtﬁcatton that-
indicates: _
i The work was completed in accordance with the construction documents mcludmg _
contract modifications, except any minor items identified on the RCHC's proposed
certificate of completion;
ii. The total amount due the contractor and a separately stated amount for each .
, unsettied claim against RCHC;
iii. Documentation noting that RCHC is released of all claims, other than those stated in
the contractor’s release; and
iv. Wages paid to laborers or mechanics were conS|stent with the: wage rate
regquirements of the contract and there are no outstanding claims for unpatd wages
c) Assignment of all guarantees and warranties to RCHC; and
d) Final partial payment excluding any amounts to be retained for disputed items and.
incomplete work (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).
Construction Warranties. The warranty period for all construction work should be at least 365 calendar
days from the date of final acceptance of the work in question or such longer period as otherwise
specified in the contract. For complex equipment or systems (such as boilers, air conditioning units,
thermal paned windows or storefronts, or membrane roofs), RCHC should consider using a full two--
year warranty. The extra year will help to ensure that RCHC can discover and report any hidden or
‘latent deficiencies while the warranty is still in force. The contractor is fully responsible to correct any.
and all legitimate deficiencies reported within the warranty period (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Monitoring Rg_c_glgt of Supplies, Equipment, and Services. RCHC shall ensure that the items r@quured ,

by contract are delivered to an appropriate location where RCHC personnel can make certain that -
receipt of supplies, materials, or equipment is properly handled and documented (HUD Handbook:
- 7460.8, Rev. 2). ,

Once received, RCHC should monitor or inspect the supplies or services obtained in accordance with
the contract. If poor contractor performance occurs, RCHC should document the file and remember that'
performance when awarding future contracts. RCHC is not obligated to pay for or accept supplies or
services until it has had an opportunity to fully inspect them (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Public Housing Projects: Contract Modification and Change Order Procedures

Occasionally, it is necessary to modify a contract or purchase order to reflect changes in the required
effort, period of performance, or price. For projects involving public housing or public housing funds,
-contract and purchase order modifications shall be issued in writing (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev 2).

Procedures. A change order is issued by RCHC after the award of a contract in any of the- contract
‘terms, including specifications, completion time, description of the work, etc., within the scope of the
contract The “Changes” clause is included in form HUD-5370 (for constructlon) form HUD-5370—C (for

“400f 46
h\depart: housing \riverside nity housing corp (rche)\forms 11\2018\annual report 17 18: 12- 4-2018\rche fy 2017-18 annual report.docx




Procurement Policy

- non-construction contracts); and form HUD-5370-EZ (for small coynstructiorildevelopment contracts)
(HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). ~ : '

Change orders/modifications should include at least the following: a detailed description of the proposed
change in work, a reference to the applicable working drawings and specifications, when applicable, a
price (credit, debit, or no change) for the change in contract work, estimate of additional time, if any,
required to complete the work, the contractor’s itemized breakdown of the cost of materials and-labor
and an itemized breakdown for any applicable subcontractors, and the change indicate: on the: .
architectural or engineering drawings, if applicable (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

RCHC shall maintain accurate records and documentation regarding contract modifications by including
a modification register or other record in each contract file. This register is required.to provide a .
_ permanent record of all actions taken in connection with each contract. The modifications register -
N should generally include information on the following: the number of modifications, a brief description
S of the change, the cost of the proposed modification, the date submitted to HUD for approval, if
applicable, any critical deadline dates, the date of HUD approval or disapproval, if applicable, and the
action taken, and the amount of any additional time required by the contractor (HUD Handbook 7460.8,
Rev. 2). ; ' '

Cost Analysis. RCHC shall require assurance that, before entering into a contract, the price is
‘reasonable. A cost analysis, consistent with federal guidelines, shall first be conducted for all contract.
modifications or change orders for projects that were procured through Sealed Bids, Competitive - ;

- -Proposals, or Non-Competitive Proposals, or for projects originally procured through Small Purchase
procedures and the amount of the contract modification will result in a total contract price in-excess of

-$50,000 (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

‘RCHC shall negotiate profit as a separate element of the price in all cases where cost analysis is
s . performed. To establish a fair and reasonable profit, consideration will be given to the complexity of the
o ~work to be performed, the risk borne by the contractor, the contractor's investment, the amount of
o - subcontracting, the quality of its record of past performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding
| : geographical area for similar work (24 CFR §85.36). :

In all cases, proposed costs must be allowable pursuant to applicable cost principles, allocabléi(retated»
to or required in the performance of the contract) and reasonable (what a prudent business would pay
in a competitive marketplace) (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2).

Public Housing Projects: Contract Terminations | o R
- Contracts may be terminated either for default or termination, as prescribed in the termination clauses
~on forms HUD-5370, 5370-C; and 5370-EZ (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). j

For projects involving public housing or public housing funds, RCHC shall terminate contracts for
convenience or default only by a written notice to the contractor. The notice shall be sent by certified
mail with a return receipt requested. The notice shall state, at a minimum, the following: :
' 1. The contract is being terminated for default or for the convenience of RCHC under the cited - !
contract clause authorizing the termination: o / ;
2. Whether the contract is terminated in whole or in part (for partial terminations, identify the :
specific items being terminated); ‘ ’ IR ;
3. - Ifterminated for default, the acts or omissions constituting the default, RCHC’s determination . - o
that failure to perform is not excusable, RCHC's rights to charge excess .costs of re-
- procurement to the contractor, and the contractor's appeal rights; '
4. The effective date of termination; '

5. The contractor’s right to proceed under the non-terminated portion of the contract;

S A
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6. Any special instructions; and ' R o
7. Copies of the notice should be sent to the contractor’s surety, if any, and any assignee (HUD
Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). '

A contract may be terminated for default because of the contractor’s actual or anticipated failure to

- perform its contractual obligations. Under a termination for default, RCHC is not liable for the =
~_contractor’s costs on undelivered work and may be entitled to the repayment of progress payments. If .
- the contractor fails to make progress so as to endanger performance of the contract, RCHC should-

. issue a written notice to the contractor (generally called a “Cure Notice”) specifying the failure and
providing a period of 10 days (or longer period if needed) in which to “cure” the failure. After the 10
days, RCHC may issue a notice of termination for default, unless the failure to perform has been cured’ -

- (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). o

If the contractor has failed to perform work within the required time and a termination for default appears
‘appropriate, RCHC should, if practicable, notify the contractor in writing of -the possibility of the
termination. This notice shall call the contractor’s attention to the contractual liabilities if the contractis: -
~terminated for default, and request the contractor to “show cause” why the contract should: not be SR
terminated. If the response to this “show cause” notice is inadequate or insufficient, action is taken in =
response to it; the contract should then be terminated for default (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2) g ’

~ - Public Housing Projects: Procurement Records ~ , :

 RCHC shall maintain records sufficient to detail the significant history of each procurement. These -
records will include, but are not necessarily limited to the following: , : ‘

Rationale for the method of procurement (if not self-evident);

A copy of the solicitation; , ,

Rationale of contract pricing arrangement (if not self-evident);

Reason for accepting or rejecting the bids or offers:

Basis for the contract price; , ‘ S L

A copy of the contract documents awarded or issued and signed by the Contracting Officer;

- Basis for contract modifications;: , ; _ ,
Related contract administration actions (24 CFR §85.36 and HUD Handbook 7460:8, Rev. 2);
and , v :

Related receipts, receivers or packing slips (HACR Procurement Procedures).

© SNOGORAWON=

The level of documentation should be commensurate with the value of the/ procurement. Records are
N to be retained for a period of ten (10) years after final payment and all matters pertaining to the contact
» are closed (RCHC Records Retention Policy). ' B

Certain information about RCHC procurements is normally considered public (e.g., name of the winning
contractor and total contract price) and should be released to the public in accordance with RCHC'’s
procurement policy and applicable state laws and regulations governing freedom of information. Other
information related to procurement is often protected from disclosure (e.g., proprietary business
information such as technical methods or processes, detailed pricing information, personal information, -
or RCHC's pre-decided information such as internal proposal evaluations). RCHC must exercise - -
caution to ensure that protected information is not made public. Contracting/procurement personnel
should consult RCHC'’s legal counsel whenever there is any question regarding the release of
information (HUD Handbook 7460.8, Rev. 2). ‘ '

l
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